MILWAUKEE W COUNTY

FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM

=
709 North Eighth Sireet

Milwaukee, WI 53233
ru: 414-286-3210

rax: 414-286-3209

NOTICE

Milwaukee County
Federated Library System
Board of Trustees

Monday, October 15th, 2018
9:00 A.M.

This meeting will be conducted in the
Hunt Room (Lower Level) of the
Hales Corners Library
5885 S. 116th Street
Hales Corners, WI53130

AGENDA

. Call to order

. Adoption of agenda

. Approval of minutes: the MCFLS Board of Trustees meeting on Monday, August 20th,

2018
Action Attachment A

. Public comment

. Library Directors Advisory Council—Report of the September 6% and October 4%,

2018 LDAC Meetings
Action Attachment B

(October 4t report distributed at meeting)
Please note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through sign language interpreters or other auxiliary aides.

Helping the public librares in Milwaukee County SERVE YOU BETTER www.mcfis.org

Page 3

Page 36



JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 3

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 36


October 2018 Page 2 MCFLS Board

Board of Trustees—Adminijstrative reports requiring action

6. Financial Reports—August and September, 2018
Action Attachment C Page 38
(September 2018 report distributed at meeting)

7. 2019 West Milwaukee Charges
Action AttachmentD Page 40

8. Sierra Server Replacement
Distributed at meeting

9, 2019 MCFLS Budget

Action AttachmentE Page 42
10. 2019 MCFLS System Plan

Action Attachment ¥ Page 45
11.2019 Delivery Contract

Action Attachment G Page 53
12.2018/19 Strategic Planning

Action AttachmentH Page 69

Administrative Informational Items

13. County Finance and Audit committee hearing _

14. Director’s Report :
Attachment1 Page 74

15. Tour of the Hales Corners Library

Next meeting date: November 26%, 2018, 9:00 a.m., MCFLS Conference Room


JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 38

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 40

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 42

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 45

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 53

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 69

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 74


October 2018 Page 3 MCFLS Board

Milwaukee County Federated Library System
Board of Trustees

Regular Monthly Meeting held Monday, September 17, 2018
At the Whitefish Bay Public Library
5420 N. Marlborough Dr.

ROLL CALL
Present: Paul Ziehler, president
Nik Kovac, Treasurer
Kurt Glaisner, Trustee
Excused: Paula Penebaker, Vice President
Martin Lexmond, Trustee
Staff: Steve Heser, Director
Jennifer Schmidt, Library Systems Administrator
Others: Pat Laughlin, Hales Corners Library

Nan Champe, South Milwaukee Public Library
Judy Pinger, Milwaukee Public Library
Nyama Reed, Whitefish Bay Public Library

CALLTO ORDER. President Ziehler called the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Milwaukee
County Federated Library System Board of Trustees to order at 9:10 a.m. Since there was no quorum
present, no action was taken on any items.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA. President Ziehler referred to the agenda. Since there was no quorum, no
action was taken at this time,

APPROVAL OF MINUTES. President Ziehler referred to the minutes of the August 20, 2018 meeting.
Since there was no quorum, no action was taken at this time regarding Attachment A of the agenda
packet.

PUBLIC COMMENT. None.

LIBRARY DIRECTORS ADVISORY COUNCIL. Pat Laughlin reviewed her report of the September 6 LDAC
meeting which is shown as Attachment B of the agenda packet,.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES — ADMINSTRATIVE REPORTS REQUIRING ACTION

Financial Report — August, 2018. The August financial report was distributed at meeting and is shown as
Exhibit 1 attached to these minutes. Action will be taken at the next scheduled meeting.

Nofes of Meeting (09/17/18)
Attachment A (1(/15/18)
Pagel of2



October 2018 Page4 MCFLS Board

2019 Delivery Contract. President Ziehler referred to the 2019 delivery contract which is shown as
Attachment C of the agenda packet. Director Heser noted this will be the tenth year of service provided
by Action Logistics for the same rates as originally bid. Action by the MCFLS Board will be taken at the
next regularly scheduled meeting.

Follow-up on Strategic Planning for 2018/19. Steve Heser reviewed the options contained in
Attachment D of the agenda packet for the strategic planning process. Discussion ensued and it was
decided to engage in a bare bones process and to contact WiLS to seek a revised bid; this topic will come
back to the MCFLS Board for action at next month’s meeting.

ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Sierra Hardware Upgrade. Director Heser reviewed Attachment E of the agenda packet which explains
the pricing for two new servers since what MCFLS currently has is five years old and we have a hardware
maintenance contract in place until new equipment is acquired, This topic will be further discussed at
the next meeting when there is a quorum present so action can be taken.

WiFi Hotspots for Member Libraries. Director Heser reviewed Attachment F of the agenda packet which
outlines equipment for staff use at member libraries when they go off-site for primarily library card
registrations. This topic will be reviewed again for again at next manth’s meeting.

Director’s Report. Director Heser reviewed his report, which is shown as Attachment G of the agenda
packet.

Tour of the Whitefish Bay Public Library. Provided by Nyama Reed after the adjournment of this
meeting.

NEXT MEETING. Scheduled for Monday, October 15, 2018 beginning at 9:00 a.m. at the Hales Corners
Library, 5885 S. 116" Street, Hales Corners, Wl 53130.

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting adjourned at 9:50 a.m.

Notes of Meeting (09/17/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page2 of 2



M.C.FLS.
Financial Report
For the Eight Months Ending August 31, 2018

October 2018 Page 5 MCFLS Board

53 |Member Database Expense $ 80,000 | § 63,504 79.38] § 16,496 20,62
54 |MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe | § 72,000 | 8 69,988 97.21] % 2,012 2.79
35 |Member Catalog Enhancement Exp 3 24,160 | § 24,160 100.00| $ - 0.00
56 |MCFLS Postage Expense 5 600 | § 544 90.67 § 56 9.33
57 |Member Postage Expense 3 25,000 | % 11,900 47.60| § 13,100 52.40
58 Member Forms/Supplies Expense $ 25,000 | % 9,815 39.26| § 15,185 60.74
59 |Telephone Expense b 5000 | § 1,329 26.58| § 3,671 73.42
60 |Meetings Expense $ 500, 8 157 31.40| § 343 68.60
61 |Insurance Expense $ 11,257 | § 11,257 100.00) § - 0.00
62 |Legal Expense 3 500 | § - 0.00] & 500 100.00
63 |Audit Expense 5 12,000 | % 12,000 100.00] §$ - 0.00
64 |Payroll Service Expense 8 4,000 | $ 2,592 64.80; § 1,408 35.20
65 |Server Hardware Maint Exp b 3,250 1 § 3,250 100.00| $ - 0.00
66 |1l Software Support Expense § 241,138 | § 240,022 99.54| § 1,116 0.46
67 |Member Telecomm. Expense $ 16,800 | § 8,400 50.00] $ 8,400 50.00
68 |MCFLS Telecomm. Maint. Expense | § 10,000 | $ 1,490 14.90! § 8,510 85.10
69 |OCLC Expense $ 125,461 | § 100,000 79.71] § 25,461 20.29
70 IMCFLS Computer Room Equipment | $ 5,000 | § 3,672 73.44| § 1,328 26,56
71 IMCFLS Equipment Expense 3 15,650 | § 13,041 83331 § 2,609 16.67
72  |Member Special Projects Expens 3 80,000 | $ 57,309 71.64] $ 22,691 28.36
73 |Sorling and Delivery Expense $ 291,700 | § 167,513 57.43] % 124,187 42.57
74 |South Central Delivery Expense $ 21,250 | § 10,625 50.00| $ 10,625 50.00
75 |Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. b 1,000 | $ 65 6.50] § 935 93.50
76 |MPL Resource Contract Expense $ 179,801 | § 89,901 50.00f § 89,900 50.00
77 |MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp., $ 128,530 | § 64,265 50.00! § 64,265 50.00
78 |ILS Expense 5 36,450 | § 18,225 50.00 § 18,225 50.00
79 IMCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL 3 276,676 | § 138,308 49.99 § 138,368 50.01
80 |Member Catalog Contract Exp. b 149,006 | § 74,503 50,001 § 74,503 50.00
81 |MCFLS Collection Dev Tool Exp b 28,000 | § - 0.00] § 28,000 100.00
82 |Internet Expense $ 20,500 1 § 10,912 53.23| § 9,588 46.77
83 |Contingency Expense b} 81,671 | § 3,195 391 8 78,476 96.09
84 |Member Digital Content Exp $ 194,179 | § 194,179 100.00| § - 0.00
85 Marketing § 10,000 | § 587 587] % 9,413 94.13
86 |Member MKE Mixer Exp 3 1,400 | § 821 58.64] 3 579 41.36
87 |Total General Expenditures b 2,869,498 | § 1,863,826 6495 § 1,005,672 35.05
88

89 |Special Expenditures

90 |W.Milwaukee Borrowing Expense $ 52,439 | § 52,439 100.00{ § - 0.00
91 |RB - MCFLS Payment Expense b 1,078,804 | § 1,068,994 99.09| § 9,810 0.91
92 (Ecommerce Expense 3 200,000 | § 134,701 67.35| & 65,299 32.65
03 |Total Special Expenditures $ 1,331,243 | § 1,256,134 94.36! § 75,109 5.64
94

95 |Total Expenditures $ 4,200,741 | § 3,119,960 7427 % 1,080,781 25.73
96

97 Revenue/Expenditures +/- b 954,953

Exhibit 1 to Mig Notes (09/17/18)
Attaclunent A (1(/15/18)
9/12/2018 at 2:13 PM For Management Purposes Only Page1 of 2



A October 2018 Page 6 MCFLS Board
- M.CF.L.S.

Financial Report
For the Eight Months Ending August 31, 2018

[ ! Annual Budget Year to Date % Balance %
2

3 |General Revenues

4 |State Aid Revenue b 2,766,162 | § 2,766,162 | (100.00)] $ - 0.00
5  |Milwaukee County Allocation by 66,650 | § 66,650 | (100.00)| 3 - 0.00
6 {West Milwaukee Contract -Other $ 48,160 | § 48,160 | (100.00)] $ - 0.00
7 |Interest on Invested Funds 5 2,000 | $ 3,033 | (151.65) § (1,033) 51.65
8 |Member Forms/Supplies Revenue 3 25,000 | § 14,720 (58.88)| § 10,280 | (41.12)
9  |Member Postage Revenue 3 25,000 | § 17,072 {68.29)| § 7928 | (31.71)
10 [Member OCLC Revenue b 113,232 | § 113,233 | (100.00)| % (1) 0.00
11 |Member Telecomm. Revenue $ 9000 $ 9,000 | (100.00)| $ - 0.00
12 |Member II Softwre Maint-Basic 5 198,088 | § 198,088 | (100.00)] 3 - 0.00
13 |Member Il Softwre Maint-Other 3 43050 | § 43,050 | (100.00)] § - 0.00
14 |Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev, 3 15,000 1 § 11,387 {(7591)] § 3,613  (24.09)
15 'Member Special Projects Revenu b 80,600 | $ 58,094 (72.62); § 21,906 | {27.38)
16 |Member Cataloging Contract Rev b 149,006 | & 149,006 | {100.00)| & - 0.00
17 |Member Database Revenue $ 77,132 | § 77,503 1 (100.48)] 8 (371) 0.48
18 |Member Catalog Enhancement Rev 3 24,160 | § 24,160 | (100.00)| § - 0.00
19 |Member Ecommerce Transaction b 9,000 | § 4,282 (47.58)) 3 4,718 (52.42)
20 |TNS Calis/Notices Revernue 3 5,600 | § 2,992 (53.43) § 2,608 | (46.57)
21 |Carryover Revenue 3 68,403 | § 68,403 | (100.00) § - 0.G0
22 |Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue $ 28,082 | § 17,200 (61.25) § 10,882 | {38,75)
23 |Member Digital Content Rev $ 194,179 | § 194,180 | (100.00)| (1) 0.00
24 \Member MKE Mixers Rev i & 1,400 | § 1,400 | (100.00)] $ - 0.00
25 |Total General Revenues $ 3,948304 | $ 3,887,775 (98.47)1 § 60,529 (1.53)
26

27 |Special Revenues :

28 |W. Miiwatkee Borrowing Revene $ 52,437 | § 52,437 | (100.00)| § - 0.00
29 |Ecommerce Revenue $ 200,000 | § 134,701 (67.35)] § 65,299 | (32.65)
30 |Total Special Revenues 3 252437 | § 187,138 (74.13)] § 65,299 | (25.87)
31

32 |Total Revenues b 4,200,741 1 § 4,074,913 {97.00)] § 125,828 (3.00)
33

34 Annual Budget Year to Date % Balance %
35

36 General Expenditures

37 |Fringe Benefits Expense 3 161,845 | § 109,051 67.38| § 52,794 32.62
38 |Salaries Expense $ 340,208 | $ 205,647 60.45) § 134,561 39.55
39 |Telephone Renewal Expense ¥ 1,600 | § 757 47.31¢ § 843 52.69
40 |Member Ecommerce Transaction B 3 9,000 | § 5,423 60.26| § 3,577 39.74
41 |TNS Calls/Notices Expense 3 56001 % 1,747 31.20| % 3,853 68.80
42 |Mileage Reimbursement Expense $ 7000 % 104 14.86; $ 596 85.14
43 |Conference/Training Expense 3 8,000 | § 1,953 2441] § 6,047 75.59
44 ' Memberships Expense b} 8,000 | $ 3,566 44.58| § 4,434 3543
45 [Continuing Education Expense $ 8750 % 6,999 79.99| § 1,751 20.01
46 |Office Supplies Expense b 1,000 | § 451 45.10) § 549 54,90
47 |Copy Machine Maint. Expense b 1,200 | § 560 46.67| § 640 53.33
48 IMCFLS Printing Expense $ 5003 - 0.00| $ 500 100.00
49 |MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense 5 50001 8% 3,370 6740 § 1,630 32.60
50 |MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Ex | § 10,616 | § 10,616 100.00] 8 . 0.00
51 {MCFLS Buying Pool $ 110,000 | § 90,060 81821 § 20,000 18.18
52 |MCFLS Database Expense b 20,000 1 % 16,053 80271 § 3,947 15.74

Exhibit 1 to Mig Notes (09/17/18)

9/12/2018 at 2:13 PM For Management Purposes Only Attachment A (10/15/18)

Page2 of 2



ROLL CALL

Present:

Excused:

Staff:

Others:

October 2018 Page 7

Milwaukee County Federated Library System
Board of Trustees

Regular Monthly Meeting held Monday, August 20, 2018
At the North Shote Library
6800 N Port Washington Rd
Glendale, WI 53217

Paul Ziehler, President

Paula Penebaker, Vice President
Nik Kovac, Treasurer

Kurt Glaisner, Trustee

Martin Lexmond

Steve Heser, Director
Judy Kaniasty, Business Manager
lennifer Schmidt, Library Systems Administrator

Pat Laughlin, LDAC Chair and Hales Corners Library
Susan Draeger-Anderson, North Shore Library
Rachel Arndt, Milwaukee Public Library

Paula Kiely, Milwaukee Public Library

CALLTO ORDER. President Ziehler called the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Milwaukee
County Federated Library System Board of Trustees to order at 9:15 a.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA. President Ziehler referred to the agenda. Trustee Glaisner moved and Vice
President Penebaker seconded a motion to adopt the agenda as distributed. Unanimously approved.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES. President Ziehler referred to the minutes of the Monday, July 16, 2018
meeting, which are shown as Attachment A of the agenda packet. Trustee Glaisner moved and
Treasurer Kovac seconded a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Unanimously approved.

PUBLIC COMMENT. North Shore Library Director, Susan Draeger-Anderson welcomed the MCFLS Board

and offered to provide a tour after the meeting for those that would be interested.

LIBRARY DIRECTORS ADVISORY COUNCIL. LDAC Chair Pat Laughlin reviewed her report of the August 2,
2018 meeting which is shown as Attachment B of the agenda packet. Vice President Penebaker moved

and Treasurer Kovac seconded a motion to accept the report and place it on file. Unanimously

approved.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES — ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS REQUIRING ACTION

MCFLS Board

Minutes 082018
Affachment A 10/15/18)

Page 1 of3



October 2018 Page 8 MCFLS Board

Financial Report — July, 2018. President Ziehler referred to the July, 2018 financial report which is shown
as Attachment C of the agenda packet. Director Heser noted he had nothing out of the ordinary to
report, however wanted to make the Board aware that he desires to purchase WordPress software at
the cost of $2,000 to modernize the website which the public sees and to incorporate a web-based local
training content tool which local library staff will be able to search which would replace the
Knowledgebase currently used which is not easy for staff to work with; funds are available in the budget
for this purchase, Trustee Glaisner moved and Vice President Penebaker seconded a motion to approve
the July, 2018 financial report as presented. Unanimously approved.

Strategic Planning Proposals for 2018/19. Director Heser noted that the Board agreed to proceed with
the concept of a strategic plan update at last month’s meeting and he then went to the LDAC meeting
for feedback and they suggested that updating the MCFLS Vision and Mission Statement be included and
that he solicit proposals from a few other facilitators — not because WiLS doesn’t do a good job but :
hecause a new look at MCFLS might be valuable. Director Heser did reach out to a few other strategic
plan facilitators and did receive a total of three proposals. Attachment D of the agenda packet contains
two that were received at the time this agenda was prepared--one from WiLS and the other from Sarah
Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC outlining the scope and schedule of their proposals for strategic
planning pracess services they offer. A handout, which summarizes the three total proposals, is shown
as Exhibit 2 attached to these minutes. Discussion ensued and Director Heser was directed to ask that
all three responders bid on the same scope of services adding some components to some and taking
some away from others and to come back next month with what is received in response to that request
to move forward on this project.

ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Review of hoopla for 2019 and feedback from member libraries. Director Heser distributed and
reviewed a hoopla statistical handout, which is shown as Exhibit 1 attached to these minutes, which the
LDAC also reviewed at their most recent meeting to determine whether to continue and/or change the
offerings to the public. After much discussion and considering whether RBDigital magazines would be a
product to consider {it was felt their platform much harder for the public to use), the LDAC voted to
continue offering this electronic resource into 2019 as is currently done and to monitor budget and
statistics on a quarterly basis to guarantee this product offering comes within budget {MCFLS $110,000
and members increasing from $30,000 to $50,000). Hoopla was the product that MCFLS decided to fund
as part of the previous Strategic Plan process so all patrons within the county would have same access
to this material type.

Public Library System Redesign (PLSR). Director Heser thanked Paula Kiely for being such a resource for
MCFLS and the State as a PLSR Steering Committee member and referred to Attachment E of the agenda
packet which summarizes the PLSR Mcdel Development Summit. Director Heser stated he felt the
Summit was valuable in hearing discussions from those around the State. Paula Kiely reported that the
release of the final recommendations to the Superintendent will be delayed until December 10" since
more time is needed by PLSR and the election is consuming time now. Paula shared that the workgroup
recommendations are going to steer the final recommendations and most likely will suggest that the
State monitor standards of services which will need to be defined and a plan put into place on how to
deliver equitably across the State. Fewer Systems will be at the heart but that is where fear is setting in
and merging would be voluntary. A deep and thorough analysis of the funding formula needs to be
done and updating compenents in that formula is overdue. There is a desire to hold all harmless
financially but gains in funding where needed. Paula noted that a few workgroup recommendations are

Minutes (08/720/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page2 of 3



October 2018 Page 9 MCFLS Board

seen as easily implemented and are likely to be initial next steps in this process. The MCFLS Board was
thankful for this informative summary regarding PLSR activities.

Director’s Report. Director Heser reviewed his report, which is shown as Attachment F of the agenda
packet. President Ziehler asked how the meeting went with the other library systems in this area of the
State and Director Heser reported that there was not much to report as those Systems like things as
they are now. President Ziehler asked how the meetings with the local library boards are going and
Director Heser responded that they are a good way for local library boards to get to know MCFLS. The
guestion of where the County is with replacements for MCFLS Board vacancies was raised and Director
Heser responded that he has contacted County Executive Abele’s office regarding the three vacancies
needed to be filled and names have already been sent over and just waiting for them to be appointed. :
Director Heser distributed a final copy of the MCFLS half-sheet infographic that was shared at previous ;
meetings. ,

Tour of the North Shore Library. Susan Draeger-Anderson provided an informational walking tour of the
library and prohahle changes when a proposed renovation occurs,

NEXT MEETING. Scheduled for Monday, September 17, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the Whitefish Bay Public
Library, 5420 N. Marlborough Dr., Whitefish Bay, Wl 53217,

ADJOURNMENT. With no further business to be addressed, Vice President Penebaker moved and
Treasurer Kovac seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:40 a.m. Unanimously approved.

Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18) :
Page 3 of 3 !



October 2018 Page 10 MCFLS Board

Annual review prepared exclusively for Milwaukee County Federated Library System

February, 2015 5,405

Milwaukee County Federated
Library System Launched hoopla!

28,672

Urnique Titles Borrowed
Since Launch

Unique Patrons
Since Launch

of Circulations were on a Mobile
Device over the past year

82%

)
a . . S

Circulation Source S o
- Last 12 Months e ;Hw
1800 Patrons Served (Monthly) S e
’ o Web/Browser N
3,600 o 0 o 18% ST
L2200 - @@ @ Q o Patrons Reached m g
1000 - : Last 12 Months ‘ 273
200 g i0S =B
600 - - : . 51% R

400 _ _ 1,689 _

No“ o o Patrons Reached " Android
May 2018 31%
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Lo
b 2017 2018
. . Milwaukee County Federated Library System patrons tend to borrow in the
Prime Time: evening 5,715 New Patrons
Most registered for hoopla by Milwaukee County
Higher Activity i i !
) p Federated Library System in the last year!
53% during the evening o._ﬂ“”_.. 9PM on Em&:mwn_m<

Circulations by Time of Day

Midnight 7PM

Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Patron Activity

New Patron Registered

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2017 2018

414

Page of 2



MCFLS Board

October 2018 Page 11

Annual review prepared exclusively for Milwaukee County Federated Library System

o, Oftitles circulated were Books,
69% Audiobooks & Comics

Titles Circulated by Format

Television
8%

Audiobook

35%
. _sp._mmm.... o
..z,_osm
11%
Comic

'Ebook
27%

7%
Circulations by Price Point

$1.00 - $1.99
51%

$0.49 - $0.99
15%

mw.omhnm_w.ww $2.00 - $2.99

20%

gy

h

i A

Audiobook 21,806 8373 $6.90 $360,039

Comic 3,741 1,662 $6,276 $3.78 $13 $21,606
eBook 11,528 6472  $18,450 $2.54 524 $155,328
Movie 8,049 2,469  $19,643 $7.96 $16 $39,504
Music 6,555 2,874 59,951 $3.46 $10 $28,740
Television 3,746 1,930 $6,445 $3.34 $14 $27,020

Leveraging the Breadth & Depth of your Last 12 Months
_ hoopla Collection
. 23,780
.«.,u Unique Titles W
Vv Depth = On-Demand Flexibiiity Circulated Sa
L =)
e 4 AL Titles circulated 2¢ a M
3 e ] . _ +
N A thnes or mors. mmuh.Nm iS
a Total Circulations m =
] =R
m 2 Breadth = Variety Hw m
5 RIS
S 15,313 3,876 11.6
> Titles {64%) Titles {16%) Circulated Circulations Per
A Circulated once fwice Patron
o
® $2.10
™ Cost per Circulation
0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000
g Titles i
Delivering Value to Your Community
E518K hoopla enabled Milwaukee County Federated Library System patrons to
Saved access 24K titles worth $632K in Content Value for $117K
ave

Page2 of 2



October 2018 Page 12 MCFLS Board

MCFLS Strategic Planning 2018/19
Summary of Facilitation Proposals

WILS. WiLS {formally Wisconsin Library Services) is a non-profit membership organization that
facilitates collaborative projects and services to save members time and money and to advance
library service, primarily in the state of Wisconsin.

Process

-- Evaluation of previous strategic plan

-- Administer a survey of MCFLS Board, system staff and member library directors to assess the
last strategic plan, current needs and challenges of libraries, and gathering input about
collaborations, resource development and services the system should be providing.

-- Based on feedback from the survey, conduct an all-day development meeting.

-- Coordinate the writing of the strategic planning document.

Cost. 55,500

References

Menomonee Falls Public Library
Sun Prairie Public Library
Sherewood Public Library

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates. Based out of the Chicago area. Specializes in community
needs assessments and strategic planning, program evaluation, and communications for
libraries and nonprofit organizations.

Process

-- Data collection, including evaluation of previous strategic plan and conducting separate
surveys of member libraries, MCFLS Board and system staff.

-- Strategic plan development including one working session to discuss the data findings and
survey results and ancther to determine the goals and objectives of the strategic plan. Meet
with system staff to develop specific action steps and measurable outcomes.

-- Submit final working document to MCFLS Board of Trustees.

Cost, 511,000

References

Delafield Public Library

Glenwood-Lynwood Public Library District, lllinois
Round Lake Area Public Library District, lllinois

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page1of 24



October 2018 Page 13 MCFLS Board

Ujima United LLC. Supports organizations in need of facilitation, strategic planning or team-
building. Mobilizes communities through coalition building and collective impact.

Budget. $13,300

Process

-- Development of a comprehensive project work plan.

-- Stakeholder analysis.

-- Assess previous strategic plan.

-- Conduct an environmental scan to compile and analyze data including a survey of system
board, staff and member library directors.

-- Facilitate a meeting to review the MCFLS mission, vision and values.

- Conduct a SWOC (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Challenges) analysis.

-- Facilitate meeting to |dentify strategic issues and another to inform the development of goals
and abjectives to address strategic issues.

-- Develop draft and finalize written strategic plan with feedback from stakeholders.

References
City of Greenfield Health Department
Greenfield Public Library

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)

Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 2 of 24



October 2018 Page 14 MCFLS Board

L3 R

Milwaukee County Federated Library System (MCFLS)
Strategic Plan Development, Consulting and Facilitation Services
Memorandum of Understanding
August 10, 2018

Introduction

The purpose of this proposal is to define the parameters and costs of the Strategic Plan Development,
Consulting and Facilitation Services WilLS will provide to the Milwaukee County Federated Library System
(MCFLS).

Contacts
Communication regarding this proposal should be directed to:

WILS MCFLS
Bruce Smith Steve Heser

1360 Regent Street, #121 709 North 8th Street
Madison, W| 53715-1255 Milwaukee, Wi 53233
608-620-5421 414-286-8149
bsmith@wils.org steve.heser@mcfls.org

Project process and deliverables

Information and data gathering and assessment

1. WILS will work with MCFLS staff to develop a summary of the end status of plan activities, as reported
during the implementation process, to do a final assessment on the completion of activities, progress
made, or activities that were not undertaken,

2,  WILS will develop and administer a survey of the MCFLS Board, system staff, and member library
directors. The intent of the survey is to explore the following four areas.

a. Based on the last strategic plan summary, MCFLS Board, system staff, and member library
directors will be asked to assess the level of the success of the last strateglc plan helping
members provide services to thelr patrons and improving system services. This survey will also
gather information about passible reasons for any success or deficiency implementing any of the
plan activities and achievement of any of the plan’s goals.

h. Gaining a better understanding of the current needs and challenges for libraries. Thisincludes
identifying rasources and services libraries want to provide to their patrons that they aren't
providing now; trends and innavations member libraries want to further explore or pursue; risks
and challenges that libraries are facing; and new roles and opportunities libraries have or could
have in their communities.

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20,/18)

Attachment A (10/15/ 18)
Page3 of 24



c.

October 2018 Page 15 MCFLS Boarc;.i

Gathering input about collaborations, resource development, and services the system should be
coordinating, participating in, and providing to maximize economy of scale benefits achieved at
the system, regional or state level. The intent of gathering this information is twofold: i
i. Gaining understanding of the expectations of libraries related to the system providing !
accessible and equitable services and resources for all the member libraries to be able
to provide equitable and excellent services in their communities.
ii. Gaining understanding of what the system could/should be doing to leverage buying
power. The intentis to understand where the system can help libraries gain efficiencies
across the system by eliminating duplications to increase capacity and coordinating
efforts of member libraries’ pursuit of common opportunities,
Ideas about how the system’s vision and mission statements could be altered to reflect the
current relationship between members and the system.

Strategic plan development

3. WILS will facilitate an all-day plan development meeting of the MCFLS Board, system staff, and member
library directors to develop a strategic plan framework. This will include processes and activities to:

a.
b.

Consider any potential ideas for updating the system’s vision and mission statements,

Review and assess the information and data gathered during this process to identify potential
directions, goals, and objectives for the system. As part of this, based upon potential PLSR
reacommendations, consider potential directions and opportunities for MCFLS locally, regionally
and statewide.

4. WILS will coordinate the writing of the strategic plan document, collaborating with system staff. This
will include:

a.

WILS will compile relevant data and information gathered, assessed, and summarized during the
course of the planning process, along with the results of the plan development meeting to write
the first draft of the strategic plan document.

WILS will coordinate a schedule with the system to complete the draft of the final plan
document. This will include writing input from the library system ta edit the first draft, The
system will coordinate getting feedback from the MCFLS Board, system staff, and member
library directors as part of their work providing edits to the first draft.

WiLS has allocated 16 hours for writing the strategic plan document. If additional writing time is
requested, WILS will work with the system to develop a mutually agreed upon additional
number of hours requested of WILS by the system.

Proposed timeline

1. September and October: perform data and information gathering and administer surveys.
November: compile and summarize information and data that has been gathered to share with plan

development meeting attendees.
3. December: hold plan development meeting.
4. January and February: develop and complete the strategic plan. :
5. March: submit strategic plan for board approval.

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 4 of 24



October 2018 Page 16 MCFLS Board

Costs and agreement terms

Activity Time Cost
Development of a summary of last strategic | 8 hours $600
plan

Survey — development, administering and 24 hours 51,800
compilation of results

Plan development meeting facilitation (2 24 hours $1,800

people - includes preparation, facilitation
and travel time)

Plan writing 16 hours $1,200
Mileage and misc. project expenses N/A 5100
TOTAL $5,500

Payment Schedule

Due upon start of project: $1,500.00

Due upon delivery of the final plan document: $4,000,00

Duration of agreement/canceliation

e Wils and MCFLS will work together to establish a timeline of the different activities to complete each
step of the proposal. If either WiLS or MCFLS need to alter the previously agreed upon timeline, such
alterations should be made prior to the deadline date of the activity that will need to be rescheduled. If
deadlines are repeatedly not met by MCFLS without communicating with WiLS, WiLS reserves the right
to change the project timeline with MCFLS approval of the new timeline. If the change in timeline will
result in overlap with other projects to the extent that WiLS will not be able to complete the work with
existing staff resources, WILS reserves the right to delay the project to a mutually agreed upon time or
to cancel the project.

» During the course of the agreement the contracting parties have the right to stop work at any time and
WILS will be paid for any work and expenses incurred through the time of cancellation.

Other Terms

e As part of the above costs, WILS calculates approximately 2 hours per month of communication time
with the system to coordinate next steps, answer questions and discuss any potential changes to the
project. This is beyond the meetings scheduled in the different phases of the project as documented in
each phase of the proposal. Should communication be required by the system beyond this amount of
time each month, WILS will discuss with the system either creating a communication plan to maintain
communications within this time range or providing a cost estimate to provide more communication
time for the project.

» Astrategic planning process is often an iterative process. There may be points during the planning
project were information is discovered that leads to the potentially adding or removing a step or two to
the planning process. When this accurs, if requested, WiLS will provide a cost estimate to perform the
additional work.

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Pageb of 24



Agreed to and accepted by:

WILS ‘ :

October 2018 Page 17 MCFLS Board

MCFLS

Signature

Bruce Smith

Name

Community Liaison

Title

August 10, 2018

Date

Signature

Name

Title

Date

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 6 of 24



October 2018 Page 18 MCFLS Board

GUEHEFLHR VLT ERTH S

Recent Strategic Planning Projects

Menomonee Falls Public Library (W1), Strategic Plan for 2017-22
Karou KENNEDY 262-532-8931 KKENNEDY @ MENOMONEE-FALLE . ORG

Sun Prairie Public Library (W1}, Strategic Plan for 2017-22
SVETHA HETZLER 608-825-0900 SHETZLER@SUNLIB.ORG

Sharewood Public Library (W!), Strategic Plan for 2019-24 (plan awaiting board approval)
RacHeL COLLINS A414-847-2676 RACHEL.COLLINS @ MCFLS.ORG

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 7 of 24



October 2018  Page 19 MCFLS Board

SARAH KEISTER ARMSTRONG & ASSOCIATES, LLC

August 13, 2018

Steve Heser

System Director

Milwaukee County Federated Library System
709 N. 8th Street

Milwaukee, W1 53233

Dear Steve:

Thank you for considering our enclosed proposal to facilitate the Milwaukee County Federated Library
System’s upcoming strategic planning process. Your vision for a strategic plan that is responsive to
member library needs and input from key stakeholders reflects the way | believe today’s library
organizations must plan for the future. It is the same approach Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates has
advocated in our many successful strategic planning projects with library clients. Qur backgroundsin
facilitation, data and statistical analysis, and quantitative and qualitative evaluation for public libraries
provide us with the expertise to lead successful strategic planning projects.

These data-driven strategic plans have greater potential to make a true impact both within
organizational operations and in how the library system serves its members. However, to facilitate and
lead thoughtful reflection on the library system’s role and synthesize this information into an action-
oriented plan requires diligent, end-to-end service from a skilled consultant. As an intentionally small
company that brings a wealth of experience in such projects, Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates
holds a distinct position in the library industry to be able to provide these services.

| look forward to speaking more about our process and vision for facilitating MCFLS's strategic planning
process with you and the system board. Please see our detaiied proposal on how we plan to facilitate
this process. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
sk K v
Sarah Keister Armstrong S

Principal & Owner
Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associatas, LLC

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/ 18)
Page 8 of 24

218 Graentree Parkway, Libertyville, IL 60048
{(224) 305-2701 sarah@skaassociates.com skaassociates.com



October 2018 Page 20 MCFLS Board

ORGANIZATIONAL INFORMATION

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC specializes in community needs assessments and strategic
planning and facilitation, program evaluation, and communications for libraries and nanprofit
organizations.

Why Us?

We're library people. We understand the challenges facing today’s libraries and the changes in how
communities interact with them. We also know that every library is different, and our intentionally small
size allows us to provide our clients with customized services and solutions.

The success of our work stems from our ability to design customized planning, facilitation, and
evaluation tools, effectively implement them, and analyze results intended to inform decision-making.
We are experienced in working with municipal and district library boards and facilitating discussicns that
lead libraries forward. This end-to-end servicing of client needs reflects our philosophy of working with
clients to meet their needs rather than for clients using pre-packaged tools and methods.

Key Personnel
Sarah Keister Armstrong has worked in a variety of private, state, and federal government offices and
nonprofit organizations. She is experienced in statistical analysis, data collection, and using gquantitative
and qualitative measures to evaluate public policies and programs. Sarah holds a Master of Public Policy
and Administration degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science and Sociology and was a
recipient of the federal government's prestigious Presidential Management Fellowship. Sarah
previously served on the Board of Directors of the Reaching Across lllinois Library System (RAILS) and
has presented and published the following:
® Engaging Your Board, Staff and Community in Strategic Planning
Presented during the Wisconsin Library Association Trustee Training Week webinar series,
August 2017
®  Advocacy From the Top: Spring Your Board to Action
Presentation at the Wisconsin Association of Public Libraries Conference, April 2017
Presentation at the {flinois Library Association Annual Conference, Qctober 2017
Presentation at the Michigan Library Association Annual Conference, October 2017
®  Survey Says: Writing Questionnaires and Avoiding Common Pitfalls
Presentation at Madison Nonprofit Day, October 2017
Presentation at the Wisconsin Library Association Annual Conference, October 2016
*  From Quantity to Quality: How Libraries Can Unearth the Meaning of Their Data
Panel Presentation at A Library State of Mind: 2015 {llinois Academic, Public, School & Special
Libraries Conference
®  Trustee Voices

Published in the /ifinois Library Association Reporter Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 9 of 24
Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC 1 .

Proposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System August 2018



October 2018 Page 21 MCFLS Board:

*  Are We There Yet? Five Stops Along a Nonprofit's Journey Through Strategic Planning
Published in Nonprofit Information

Sarah served on the Fremont Public Library District Board of Trustees from 2013 to 2017, most recently
as vice president, and serves in the following leadership roles within her community:

& Director-at-Large, lllinois Library Association

»  Co-Chair of the Lake County Youth Empowerment for Success Coalition

Beth Keister also brings a mix of technical expertise and library consulting experience to the firm. After
earning a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics and a Master of Science degree in Statistics, Beth
worked in various technical positions for commercial and non-profit organizations, taught university
level mathematics, and consulted with major educational publishers. She has trained the staffs of
several libraries and organizations on a variety of software packages and consulted with libraries on
creating programs and reports that support daily operations. She also is experienced in using survey
design and research methodologies for evaluation purposes.

Dan Armstrong is a skilled information professional with experience working in educational and
nonprofit organizations. He is experienced in developing and implementing public relations, community
engagement, and social media strategies. Dan holds a Master of Library and Information Science degree
and a Bachelor of Arts degree in English-writing and Sociology and has been recognized for his
accomplishments in writing and media relations.

Our Philosophy

Our approach to project management actively engages those meaningfully influenced by the project,
includes regular communication with project leads, and results in high-quality products that help
organizations chart meaningful progress for the future. Our philosophy as a firm is to be lean, results-
focused, efficient, and effective for our clients. In working with public institutions, we maintain a strong
commitment to fiscal responsibility and accountability to the residents of the communities we assist.

Bchibit 2 to Minutes (08,2013
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 10 of 24

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Assaciates, LLC 2
Froposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System August 2018



October 2018 Page 22 MCFLS Board

QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

We're proud to have led a number of successful strategic planning projects for public libraries with the
belief that when their operations are aligned with community needs, libraries can be transformational
institutions. Our fresh perspectives and multidisciplinary backgrounds position us to help organizations
chart meaningful progress for the future. From initial consultation to design of the planning process and
analysis of community feedback, this service reduces the additional responsibilities often assighed to
staff during planning processes.

Recent Library Projects
Our modern perspectives on strategic planning and community needs assessments result in straight-
forward, visionary, dynamic documents that will be regularly referenced and updated rather than put
away on a high shelf. In all projects, Sarah Keister Armstrong serves as project [ead, and Beth Keister
and Dan Armstrong provide project support. Some of our past and current clients have included:

»  Addison Public Library, Addison, lllinois

*  American Library Association, Chicago, lllinois

®»  Arlington Heights Memorial Library, Arlington Heights, lllinois

= Bartlett Public Library District, Bartlett, lllinois

»  Bensenville Community Public Library, Bensenville, lllinois

»  Delafield Public Library, Delafield, Wisconsin

* Ella Johnson Memorial Public Library, Hampshire, lllincis

»  Forest Park Public Library, Forest Park, lllinois

®  Fox River Valley Public Library District, East Dundee, lllinois

" Glencoe Public Library, Glencoe, Illinois

*  Glenwood-Lynwood Public Library District, Lynwood, lllinois

®»  Green Hills Public Library District, Palos Hills, lllinois

»  Hillside Public Library, Hillside, lllinois

® [tasca Community Library, Itasca, lllinois

»  Jacksonville Public Library, facksonville, lllinois

» Lake Forest Library, Lake Forest, Illinois

» Lake Geneva Public Library, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin

» Lansing Public Library, Lansing, Illinois

»  Messenger Public Library, North Aurora, lllincis

®»  Morton Grove Public Library, Morton Grove, lllinois

*  Mukwonago Community Library, Mukwonago, Wisconsin

»  Palos Heights Public Library, Palos Heights, lllinois

®»  Round Lake Area Public Library, Round Lake, Illinois

*  Warren-Newport Public Library District, Gurnee, lllinois

®  Wheaton Public Library, Wheaton, Itlinois

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)

Page 11 of 24
Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC 3

Proposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System August 2018



References

Stephanie Ramirez

Library Director

Delafield Public Library

500 Genesee Street

Delafield, Wl 53018

Phone: (262} 646-6230

Email: sramirez@delafieldlibrary.org

Kathy Parker

Former Director (retired June 2018)
Glenwood-Lynwood Public Library District
19901 Stony Island Avenue

Lynwood, IL 66411

Email: kathyvpconsult@gmail.cem

Jim DiDonato

Executive Director

Round Lake Area Pubtic Library District
906 Hart Rd.

Round Lake, IL 60073

Phone: {847) 546-7060, ext, 127
Email: jdidonate@rlalihrary.org

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC

Proposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System

4

October 2018 Page 23 MCFLS Board

Fxhibit 2 to Minutes (08,/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 12 of 24

August 2018



October 2018 Page 24 MCFLS Board

PROJECT APPROACH AND SCHEDULE

' By engaging the MCFLS system board, staff, and member directors in canversations that build upon the
system’s strategic plan developed in 2015, we will assist in facilitating discussion regarding the library
system’s future and developing a new strategic plan that aligns with identified needs and leads the
system forward.

The tasks listed below are categorized by Data Collection and Strategic Plan Development:

Phase One: Data Collection

To explore the needs of member libraries and perspectives of MCFLS board and staff members, we
propase the following tasks:

1. Assess progress and achievements of the 2015-2017 strategic plan. With input from MCFLS staff
and board, develop a summary of the progress made toward each of the service goals included
in the last strategic plan. This feadback on what was and was not achieved will help inform the
guestions included in the three surveys below.

2. Conduct a survey of member libraries.
The survey will include a variety of questions to gauge satisfaction with current MCFLS services,
areas of need for member libraries, and outlook for the future of the organization.

3. Conduct a survey of system board members.
The survey will solicit feedback from library system trustees and the unigue perspective that
each brings to the planning process. The survey will solicit feedback about the role of the
system within the Milwaukee County library community and the system’s strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities for continuous improvement, and threats to its future success.

4. Conduct a survey of system staff members.
The survey of staff members will include opportunities to provide feedback regarding the
system’s role within the library community, as well as staff perspectives of future service to
member libraries. In addition, with the belief that staff are critical to the success of any strategic
plan and should be engaged in the strategic planning process, learning about staff perspectives
of the strengths and weaknesses of the existing strategic plan as it relates to MCFLS’s operations
today also will provide context to crafting a new actionable strategic plan.

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 13 of 24

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC 5
Proposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System August 2018



October 2018 Page 25 MCFLS Board

These data collection tasks will aim to answer the following questions:

e What do member libraries want to be providing to their patrons that they are not providing or
are not able to provide at this time? What barriers are there to meeting these needs?

¢ What role should the system have in facilitating connection to resources? What benefits should
it be providing to member libraries that it is not at this time? Are there current benefits to
member libraries or services the system is providing that are no longer worthwhile?

o What efficiencies can the system provide through its purchasing power and capacity to
coordinate among member libraries?

Phase Two: Strategic Plan Development
To facilitate the second phase of the library’s strategic planning process, we propose the following tasks:

1. Facilitate first working session with MCFLS board members, staff, and member libraries. This
meeting will include a review of findings from the data collection phase outlined above. In
addition, attendees will participate in discussions to review the system’s vision and mission
statements to ensure they aligh with the current relationship between MCFLS and its member
libraries. Following the working session, a summary of the discussion will be provided.

2. Facilitate second working session with MCFLS board members, staff, and member libraries to
daetermine overarching goals and objectives of strategic plan. The goal of the meeting will be to
reach consensus on the goals and strategies of the new strategic plan. Following the warking
session, a summary of the discussion will be provided, as well as a draft outline of the strategic

plan.

The timing of this session should allow the group to consider the PLSR recommendaticns and
service model ideas, as are relevant to MCFLS.

3. Meet with staff members to develop specific action steps and measurable ocutcomes that will
communicate the degree of progress toward the new plan’s goals and objectives. Following this
meeting, a full draft of the strategic plan will be submitted to the system board for review and

approval.
Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18) ;
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 14 of 24
Sarah Keister Armstrang & Associates, LLC 6

Proposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System August 2018



Project Timeline

October 2018 Page 26 MCFLS Board;

The following timeline is flexible and dependent upon the determined needs of MCFLS, as well as

availability of participants.

Month Tasks
Information gathering, including review of data and materials developed
September 2018 during 2015 strategic planning process
Develop staff, board, and member library surveys
Distribute staff, board, and member library surveys
Submit written report of survey findings
October - . . P ) Y &
Facilitate first working session with MCFLS board members, staff, and
November 2018
member libraries
Develop and submit a written summary of the first working session
Facilitate second working session with MCFLS board members, staff, and
member libraries
December 2018 . . .
Develop and submit a written summary of the working session and draft
outline of the strategic plan
Work with staff members to draft specific action-orlented tasks that align
January —~ with determined goals and strategies of the strategic plan
February 2019 Make necessary revisions and submit final document for review by Board

of Trustees

Cost of Service

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates sets its fees as total project costs, which include labor, materiais

used by Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, and travel incurred by Sarah Keister Armstrong &
Associates. The total project cost of the project approach and work schedule outlined above is not to

exceed 511,000,

The project will be invoiced as follows:
m  25% at contract award;
m  25% at conclusion of second working session; and

m  50% at submission of strategic plan for review and approval by the Board of Trustees.

Sarah Keister Armstrong & Associates, LLC 7
Proposal to Milwaukee County Federated Library System

Fchibit 2 to Minutes (08 /20/18)
Attachment A (10/ 15/18)

Page 15 of 24

August 2018



October 2018 Page 27 MCFLS Board

{ UJIMA UNITED, LLC
| PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES

PARTNERS FOR CHANGE

OVERVIEW

Ujima United, LLC is pleased to submit this proposal for services to help advance the
mission of the Milwaukee County Federated Library System (MCFLS) to provide
outstanding library service for all Milwaukee County citizens by:

» facilitating cooperation among member libraries,

» improving access and encouraging resource sharing,

> promoting the most effective and efficient use of available funding, and
» assisting member libraries with current and evolving technology.

OBJECTIVE

To facilitate a strategic planning process that will provide the organization and its
stakeholders with a clear picture of where it is headed, what it plans to achieve, the
methods by which it will succeed and the measures to monitor progress.

EVALUATING SUCCESS

A successful strategic plan will:

* Engage and promote collaboration among a broad group of diverse stakeholders

throughout the process

Result in the development of a shared mission, vision and values

Consider relevant data and information from an environmental scan

Identify strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and challenges

Prioritize a set of shared strategic issues

Develop goals and specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-oriented

(SMART) objectives for each of the identified priority strategic issues

Leverage best practices and evidenced-based implementation strategies

« Result in the development of a written action plan

+ Assure continuous quality improvement through ongoing process and outcome
evaluation methods

« Ultimately, support the mission of the Milwaukee County Federated Library
System

* & » & »

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08,/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 16 of 24 :



October 2018 Page 28 MCFLS Board

GQUALIFICATIONS

Ujima United, LLC serves as a partner for change, providing a wide range of
professional consulting services to individuals, organizations and communities.
Additional information can be found online at: www.Uiimal/nitedL.L.C.com.

We are a diverse consortium of highly skilled professionals working together to create
positive change. QOur team approach allows us to leverage our collective strengths. Dr.
Kim Whitmore will serve as the lead consultant for this project. Other members of the
Ujima United team will help support the project based on the scope of work.

Dr. Kim Whitmore has had more than 15 years of public health experience working
with communities at both the local and state level. As the Health Officer for the City of
Cudahy Health Department, she established the Healthiest Cudahy Coalition and led
the community health assessment (CHA) and community health improvement planning
(CHIP) process. As the State Health Plan Officer for the Wisconsin Division of Public
Health, she was responsible for the monitoring and evaluation of Healthiest Wisconsin
2020. She worked closely with the Public Heaith Council to develop a process to
prioritize the focus areas and better align with Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB)
standards. Dr. Whitmore also worked closely with the State Innovation Model (SIM)
initiative to help align diverse stakeholders across Wisconsin to improve population
health. Additionally, she oversaw Public Health Workforce Development, Public Health
Accreditation, and the Primary Care Program for the State of Wisconsin. She has broad
public and private sector experience with meeting facilitation, strategic planning, and
coalition building, as well. Dr. Whitmore has previously led strategic planning efforts for
several public libraries, local health departments, and community-based organizations.
In her current position as an Assistant Professor at the University of Wisconsin -
Madison, she helps to cultivate the next generation of healthcare leaders who will
transform the healthcare system and communities to promote health equity and society
justice. With her diverse experience and training, Dr. Whitmore is uniquely positioned to
help support this important work for the Milwaukee County Federated Library System.

"Working with Ujima United consulting services to help develop a
strategic plan was a very positive experience for ail our stakeholders.
Kim Whitmore was creative, responsive, and always positive and
engaging. She was able to draw our stakeholders into the planning
process which many of them had previously dreaded. All participants
were very appreciative of the exceflent skill, knowledge and
professionalism of Ujima United!”

- Sheila O'Brien, Director
Greenfield Public Library

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/ 18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
2 Page 17 of 24



DTRATEGY

October 2018 Page 29 MCFLS Board

We are focused on producing positive, timely results. We believe we are stronger
together and work to build collective impact in all we do. We approach all of our work
with a lens for social justice and health equity. Our asset-based approach alfows us to
build upon existing strengths. Our work is evidenced-based and grounded in best
practices. We strive to build capacity and create long-lasting, sustainable change.
Following is a proposed timeline of key project activities. Dates are best-guess
estimates based on a September 1, 2018 start date and are subject to change until a

contract is executed.

. Development of a | September | Lead consuitant will work with program staff to
comprehensive 2018 develop a comprehensive work plan that can be
project work plan used to guide the overall process. The work plan

i will include detailed action steps for all activities

and a plan for evaluation.

Stakeholder : September | Identify key stakeholders and the type of influence

Analysis ' 2018 each stakeholder has on your organization and/or
the process and potential success of the effort.
This will be used to ensure appropriate stakeholder
engagement throughout the process.

Assessment of September/ | Develop summary of the end status of plan

2015-2017 October | activities, as reported during the implementation

Strategic Plan 2018 process, to do a final assessment on the
completion of activities, progress made or activities
that were not undertaken. Based on summary,
survey system board, staff and member directors
to assess level of success of goals in regards {o
helping members and improving services. Gather
information about possible reasons for success or
less than success.

Determine September/ | Conduct an environmental scan to compile and

Relevant Data October | analyze meaningful data and information to create

2018 a big-picture view of what is going on inside and

outside the organization. This includes developing
and administering a survey of system board, staff,
and member directors.

| Review of November | Facilitate meeting to review (and update, as
Mission, Vision 2018 needed) the mission, vision and values.
and Values » Mission: The organization's purpose; what

. the organization does and why.

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (1o/15/ 18)
Papge 18 of 24

LS



October 2018 Page 30 MCFLS Board

» Vision: Futuristic view regarding the ideal
state or conditions that the organization
aspires to change or create.

s Values: Principles, beliefs and underlying
assumptions that guide the organization.

SWOC analysis November | Conduct a SWOC analysis to identify the
2018 organization’s internal strengths and weaknesses

and the external opportunities and threats or
challenges. This analysis helps the organization
clearly define the context, which is a critical step
before the organization can identify and prioritize
strategic issues,

Identify Strategic November | Present summary of key environmental scan

Issues 2018 results and facilitate discussion to help identify
strategic issues.

Develop Goals, December | Inform the development of the goals, objectives,

Objectives, and 2018 and strategies for the identified strategic issues.

Strategies for The tearless logic model is the recommended

Strategic [ssues framework for this process using the World Café
Method to engage stakeholders.

Develop Draft of January/ | A draft of the written strategic plan will be

Written Strategic February | developed based on the input from stakeholders.

Plan 2019

Public Comment February/ | The draft strategic plan will be disseminated to the

Period March 2019 | community for public comment

Finalize Written March 2019 | Revise strategic plan based on feedback from the

Strategic Plan community

Disseminate March 2019 | Broadly disseminate strategic plan to the

Strategic Plan community through press releases, website, social
media, and targeted messaging to key
stakeholders

Implement and Ongoing | An ongoing monitoring system will be needed to

continuously evaluate both the process and outcomes of the

evaluate the plan plan

Maintain Ongoing | An agreed upon method for continued engagement

community with the community will need to be established

engagement

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)

Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 19 of 24



October 2018 Page 31 MCFLS Board

RESQURCES

The resources needed to successfully complete this project will vary based on the
scope of work. Meeting expenses (i.e. room rental, set-up, food/beverages, supplies),
advertising/marketing costs, website/social media development and printing/distribution
costs of dissemination materials are the responsibility of the Milwaukee County
Federated Library System.

Ujima United consulting fees will be determined based on the level of support needed
throughout the process at the fixed rate of $100 per hour based on actual time
worked.

Below is a menu of services based on the proposed activities for your consideration.
The consultation time required to complete each activity is a best estimate and may be
subject to variability. Estimates of consultation time required for completion are based
on a seven month contract period. Should the contract period be longer or shorter,
actual time required will be adjusted, accordingly. Additional activities and services may
be negotiated, as needed.

Ujima United consultants will collaborate with program staff for all activities using a
team-based approach to ensure successful and timely completion of all deliverables.
The total amount of consultation time required may be reduced if Milwaukee County
Federated Library System staff or interns are available to help support the activities.
Additionally, pro bono partner funds may be available to help off-set costs, if needed.

We are comimitted to working with you
{0 ensure the project meets your budget needs,

Ongoing Lead consultant will meet | Meeting 21 hours
Guidance with program staff Summaries
regularly to evaluate (2 hour meeting
progress, discuss next + 1 hour prep
steps based on the work and summary x
plan, and provide technicat 7 meetings)
assistance, as needed.

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 20 of 24



October 2018 Page 32 MCFLS Board

Development of a
comprehensive
project work plan

Lead consultant will work
with program staff to
develop a comprehensive
work pian that can be
used to guide the overall
process. The work plan
will include detailed action
steps for all activities and
a plan for evaluation

Work Plan

6 hours

Stakeholder
Analysis

|dentify key stakeholders
and the type of influence
each stakeholder has on
your organization and/or
the process and potential
success of the effort. This
will be used to ensure
appropriate stakeholder
engagement throughout
the process.

Spreadsheet
of Key
Stakeholders

4 hours

Assessment of
2015-2017
Strategic Plan

Develop summary of the
end status of plan
activities, as reported
during the implementation
process, to do a final
assessment on the
completion of activities,
progress made or
activities that were not
undertaken. Based on
summary, survey system
board, staff and member
directors to assess level of
success of goals in
regards to helping
members and improving
services. Gather
information about possible
reasons for success or
less than success.

Written
Summary of
Assessment
Results

4 hours to
conduct review
of written 2015-
2017 Strategic
Plan

10 hours to
develop,
administer and
analyze survey
of system
board, staff, and
member
directors

6 hours to
develop written
summary

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 21 of 24



October 2018 Page 33 MCFLS Board

Determine - Conduct an environmental | PowerPoint 30 hours j
Relevant Data : scan to compile and Presentation
analyze meaningful data | of Key
~and information to create a | Environmental
. big-picture view of what is | Scan Findings |
| going on inside and
. outside the organization.
. This includes developing
: and administering a
| survey of system board,
| staff and member ;
" directors. :
| |
Develop Mission, 1 Facilitate meeting with Mission, 4 hours :
Vision and Values | select group of key Vision and
. stakeholders to develop Values ‘
' the Mission, Vision and Summary 3
' Values Document
SWOC Analysis  * Conduct a SWOC analysis | SWOC 4 hours
- with the select group of Analysis
key stakeholders to Results Report
identify the organization’s j
| internal strengths and |
weaknesses and the 1
external opportunities and
threats or challenges. |
Identify Strategic | Present summary of key Meeting 6 hours |
Issues environmental scan results | agenda, |
and facilitate discussion fo | presentation, g
help identify strategic and summary. !
issues. . r
i f
Develop Goals, Facilitate stakeholder Meeting 8 hours
Objectives, and meeting to develop the agenda, ‘
Strategies for goals, objectives, and presentation, :
Strategic Issues strategies for the identified | and summary. ;
strategic issues. '

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18) |
Aftachment A (10/15/18) !
Page 22 of 24



October 2018 Page 34

Finalize and
Disseminate
Written Strategic
Plan

Develop a draft of the
written strategic plan
(including a plan for
implementation and
ongoing evaluation)

Disseminate draft plan for
stakeholder feedback.

Revise'plan based on
feedback

Broadly disseminate the
final plan through press
releases, website, social
media, and targeted
messaging o key
stakeholders.

Program staff will
implement and evaluate
the plan.

Written

Strategic Plan

24 hours to draft
plan

6 hours for
review of
feedback and
revisions

TBD hours for
dissemination
based on plan
and role of

program staff

Implement and
continuously
evaluate the plan

An ongoing monitoring
system will be needed to
evaluate both the process
and outcomes of the plan

*Additional resources would need
to be negotiated if consultation
services for the implementation
and evaluation of the plan on an
ongoing basis are needed.

Maintain
community
engagement

An agreed upon method
for continued engagement
with the community will
need to be established

*Additional resources would need
to be negotiated if consultation
services for community
engagement on an ongoing basis
are needed.

SUMMARY

We look forward to supporting the strategic planning process for the Milwaukee County
Federated Library System. If you have questions related to this proposal, feel free to
contact Kim Whitmore at your convenience by email at UjimaUnited@gmail.com or by

phone at 414-403-2699. Thank you for your consideration.

MCFLS Board

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/ 20/18)

Attachment A (10/15/ 18)
Page 23 of 24



October 2018 Page 35 MCFLS Board

AGREEMENT OF TERMS

Ujima United, LLC agrees to complete the activities described in this proposal, including
all deliverables by the dates indicated. Monthly invoices will be submitted for services
based on the actual amount of time worked at the rate of $100, not to exceed the total
amount indicated, unless otherwise negotiated.

The Milwaukee County Federated Library System agrees to prompt payment within 30
days of receipt of invoice.

Kim E. Whitmore, PhD, RN, CPN Date
Owner and Chief Change Officer
Ujima United, LLC

Steve Heser Date
System Director

Milwaukee County Federated Library System

[00-GEE-mah]

Collective work and
responsibility

Exhibit 2 to Minutes (08/20/18)
L4 Attachment A (10/15/18)
Page 24 of 24



October 2018 Page 36 MCFLS Board

September 17, 2018

2 Hales Cornets WIBHAC:

ges Sonth B Sieeet WALEN
“plephone (10 5SBH150

To: MCFLS Board of Trustees

From: Patricia Laughlin, Director

Hales Corners Library

Re: Summary of LDAC Meeting, September 6, 2018
Location: Whitefish Bay Library

Summary:

Committee presentations: 2018-2019 meeting schedules

- Youth Services Committee: presented by Co-Chairs Anne Kissinger (Tosa) and Jamie
Mercer (Cudahy)

- Young Adult Services Committee: presented by Chair, Emily Alford (Greenfield)

= Adult and Reference Services Committee: presented by Chair, Barbara Alvarez
(North Shore)

- Circulation Services Committee: presented by Chair, Kellie Nimphius (Oak Creek)

- MKE Mixers: presented by Chair, Jessica Norris (St. Francis)

MKE Mixers proposed budget: Chair, Jessica Norris, reviewed the budget for January-August
2018, September-December 2018, and budget plans for 2019. She answered questions and
explained how this new committee is working.

CountyCat Mobile: Jennifer provided an overview of the current CountyCat mobile capabilities
and reviewed a number of ofher vendors. As part of the upcoming strategic planning process,
an upgrade to a new vendor for CountyCat mobile will be considered.

Sierra Update:

a. LibraryNOW and Seton Catholic students: Jennifer reported on the status of
LibraryNOW, MPL’s virtual card service to school-age children. Seton Catholic students
are being added to LibraryNOW. Seton Catholic schools are a loosely organized group
of schools located in the City of Milwaukee and also throughout Milwaukee County.
Member libraries with Seton students living in their communities were asked to leave the
Sierra patron record alone when upgrading the child to a full service library card.

b. August 27" upgrade to Sierra 3.4 follow up: Jennifer provided a status report on the
Sierra 3.4 upgrade.

Collection HQ Update: Steve reported member library information is now available. Access
and use of the information is easy to understand. Uploads will be provided on the 1% Thursday
of each month. Staff training is taking place on September 19" at Shorewood.

CFRA Marketwatch: This database product is being considered as an alternative to S&P
NetAdvantage. 2019 proposed pricing for CFRA Marketwatch for member libraries was
reviewed. Several libraries provided feedback that this product is easy to use, provides remote
access, statistics by library, and some features not found with the more expensive S&P

LDAC Report 9/6/18
Attachment B (10/13/18)
Pagelof2



October 2018 Page 37 MCFLS Board

NetAdvantage. Steve will negotiate best price with the vendor and provide this information to
member libraries.

Transparent Language: This database product is being considered as an alternative to Mango
Languages. The WPLC Board has suggested using this product and negotiating a state-wide
contract. The cost is much less expensive than Mango Languages, about $5,700 for Milwaukee
County. City of Milwaukee subscribes to Mango Languages and another product called
Pronunciator. They would give up their subscription {o Mango Languages but keep their
subscription to Pronunciator because it has a citizenship component. :

Cooperative purchasing through WiLS: Steve explained that he was ready to suggest to the
MCFLS Board picking up the $200 annual membership fee for each member library in order to
have access to the comprehensive list of cooperative purchasing agreements provided by
WILS. There were questions about how the purchasing would work and the discounts available.
Member libraries will consider the information provided and discussion will continue at the next
meeting.

Additional business:

- WiFi hotspots: MCFLS is considering purchasing hotspots and wili offer them to member
libraries to use remotely. MCFLS will work with member libraries on setting up laptops
for remote library card registration.

- WPLC Selection Committee — representatives: Member libraries are asked to suggest a
staff person to serve on the Selection Committee along Jacki Potratz from MPL.

- Strategic Plan: Steve reviewed the timeline to hire an organization to assist in strategic
planning. Two half-day developmental sessions will be held, making it easier for
participants to aftend.

- Encore — articles: Jennifer suggested a change to Encore in how articles are displayed,
separating them from books and other formatted materials. This topic will be discussed
by the MCFLS Adult and Reference Services Committee at their September meeting.

- October LDAC meeting — substitute chair: Nyama Reed will chair the October 4%
meeting and provide a report to the MCFLS Board at their October 15" meeting. (Pat
Laughlin will be on vacation.)

LDAC Report 9/6,/18
Attachment B (10/13/ 18)
Page2of 2



M.CFL.S.

Financial Report
For the Eight Months Ending August 31, 2018

October 2018 Page 38

MCFLS Board

1 Annual Budget Year to Date % Balance %

2

3  |General Revenues |
4 |State Aid Revenue § 2,766,162 | § 2,766,162 | (100.00)] $ - 0.00
5  |Milwaukee County Allocation $ 66,650 | 66,650 | (100.00) § - (.00
6  |West Milwaukee Contract -Other $ 48,160 | B 48,160 | (100.003| § - 0.00 !
7  |Interest on Invested Funds ¥ 2,000 | % 3,033 | (151.65) § (1,033) 51.65 |
8  |Member Forms/Supplies Revenue $ 25000 | § 14,720 (58.88) § 10,280 | (41.12) |
9  |Member Postage Revenue § 25,000 | § 17,072 (68.29) § 7,928 | (3L71) !
10 {Member OCLC Revenue $ 113,232 | § 113,233 | (100.00)| § (1) 0.00 3
11 |Member Telecomm. Revenue $ 9,000 | § 9,000 | (100.00) 3 - 0.00

12 iMember 11 Softwre Maint-Basic $ 198,088 | § 198,088 | (100.00) $ - (.00 i
13 |Member I Softwre Maint-Other $ 43,050 | § 43050 | (100.00)| $ - 0.00

14 [Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev, $ 15,000 | § 11,387 {75.91) § 3,613 (24.09)

15 |Member Special Projects Revenu b 80,000 | § 58,094 (72.62) § 21,906 | (27.38)

16 |Member Cataloging Contract Rev $ 149,006 | $ 149,006 | (100.00)] $ : 0.00

17 |Member Database Revenue $ 77,132 | § 77,503 | (100.48)] § (371) 0.48

18 |Member Catalog Enhancement Rev $ 24,160 | § 24,160 | (100.00) §$ - 0.00

19 |Member Ecommerce Transaction $ 9,000 | § 4,282 {47.58)] $ 4718 | (52.42)

20 |TNS Calls/Notices Revenue $ 5,600 | $ 2,992 {53.43}| § 2,608 | (46.57)

21 |Carryover Revenue $ 68,403 | § 68,403 | (100.00)| § - 0.00

22 |Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue $ 28,082 | § 17,200 {61.25)| § 10,882 (38.75)

23 |Member Digital Content Rev $ 194179 | § 194,180 | (100.00)| § 1)) 0.00

24 |Member MKE Mixers Rev 3 1,400 | § 1,400 | (100.00)| $ - 0.00

25 |Total General Revenues 3 3,948,304 | § 3,887,775 (98.47) § 60,529 {1.53)

26

27 |Special Revenues

28 |W. Milwaukee Borrowing Revene 5 52437 | § 52,437 | (100.00)| § - 0.00

29 |Ecommerce Revenue $ 200,000 | § 134,701 (67.35)] § 65,299 (32.65)

30 |Total Special Revenues 3 252,437 | § 187,138 (74.13)| § 65,299 {25.87)

31 ?
32 |Total Revenues 3 4,200,741 | § 4,074,913 (97.00)| $ 125,828 (3.00) |
33 i
34 Annual Budget|  Year to Date % Balance % !
35

36 |General Expenditures !
37 |Fringe Benefits Expense b 161,845 | § 109,051 67.38 § 52,754 32.62 l
38 |Salaries Expense $ 340,208 | § 205,647 6045 § 134,561 39.55 ;
39 |Telephone Renewal Expense $ 1,600 | 3 757 47.31| § 843 52.69

40 |Member Ecommerce Transaction E $ 9,000 | $ 5,423 60.26| § 3,577 39.74

41 |TNS Calls/Notices Expense § 5,600 | $ 1,747 31.20| § 3,853 68.80

42  |Mileage Reimbursement Expense $ 700 | 104 14.86] § 596 85.14

43 |Conference/Training Expense b 8,000 | § 1,953 24411 § 6,047 75.59

44  |Memberships Expense 5 8,000 | § 3,566 44.58| § 4,434 55.43

45 |Continuing Education Expense $ 8,750 | § 6,999 79.99 § 1,751 20.01

46 |Office Supplies Expense $ 1,000 | $ 451 45.10{ § 549 54.90

47 |Copy Machine Maint. Expense $ 1,200 | § 560 46,67| § 640 53.33

48 |MCFLS Printing Expense -§ 500 | $ - 0.00| $ 500 100.00

49 |MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense $ 5,000 | § 3,370 67.40| § 1,630 32.60

50 |MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Ex | § 10,616 | § 10,616 100.00| § - 0.00

51 [MCFLS Buying Pool $ 110,000 | § 90,000 81.82] § 20,000 18,18

52 |MCFLS Database Expense $ 20,000 | § 16,053 80.27| § 3,947 19,74

Financial Report 8,/31/18
Attachment C (10/15/18)
Pagelof2

10/9/2018 at 11:15 AM For Management Purposes Only



M.C.EL.S,
Financial Report
For the Eight Months Ending August 31, 2018

October 2018 Page 39 MCFLS Boarcﬁ

53 |Member Database Expense $ 80,000 | $ 63,504 79.38{ § 16,496 20.62

34 |MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Bxpe | § 72,000 | § 69,988 97.21] § 2,012 2.79

55 |Member Catalog Enhancement Exp 8 24,160 | § 24,160 100.00| § - 0.00

56 |MCFLS Postage Expense 5 600 | § 544 90.67| § 36 9.33

57 |Member Postage Expense 3 25,000 | § 11,900 47.60| § 13,100 52.40

58 [Member Forms/Supplies Expense $ 25,000 | § 9,815 39.26| 8 15,185 60.74

59 |Telephone Expense B 5,000 | § 1,329 26.58| § 3,671 73.42

60 |Meetings Expense b 500 | $ 157 31.40( § 343 68.60

61 |Insurance Expense $ 11,257 | § 11,257 100.00| § - 0.00

62 |Legal Expense $ 500 | § - 0.00) $ 500 100.00

63 | Audit Expense $ 12,000 | $ 12,000 100.00| $ - 0.00

64 |Payroll Service Expense $ 4,000 | $ 2,592 64.80| § 1,408 35.20

65 |Server Hardware Maint Exp $ 3,250 | § 3,250 100.00] § - 0.00

66 |III Software Support Expense $ 241,138 1 § 240,022 99.54] § 1,116 0.46

67 |Member Telecomm. Expense $ 16,800 | § 8,400 50.00] & 8,400 50.00

68 |MCFLS Telecomm. Maint. Expense | §$ 10,000 | § 1,490 14.90f § 8,510 85.10

69 |OCLC Expense $ 125,461 | $ 100,000 7971 § 25,461 20.29

70 |MCFLS Computer Room Equipment | § 50008 3,672 7344 § 1,328 26.56

71 |MCFLS Equipment Expense $ 15,650 | § 13,041 8333 § 2,609 16.67

72 |Member Special Projects Expens $ 80,000 | § 57,309 71.64| $ 22,691 28.36

73 iSorting and Delivery Expense $ 291,700 | § 167,513 5743 § 124,187 42.57

74 |South Central Delivery Expense $ 21,250 | § 10,625 50.00] & 10,625 50.00

75 |Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. $ 1,600 | § 65 6.50] § 935 93.50

76 |MPL Resource Coniract Expense $ 179,801 | § 39,901 50.00) § 29,900 50.00 |
77 |MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. $ 128,530 | § 64,265 50.00) § 64,265 50.00
78 |ILS Expense 5 36,450 | § 18,225 50.00{ §$ 18,225 50.00
79 |MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL $ 276,676 | $ 138,308 4999 § 138,368 50.01
80 |Member Catalog Contract Exp. $ 149,006 | $ 74,503 50.00 § 74,503 50.00 i
81 |MCFLS Collection Dev Too! Exp $ 28,000 | § - 0.00| § 28,000 100.00 5
82 |Internet Expense $ 20,500 | $ 10,912 53.23| § 9,588 46.77

83 |Contingency Expense § 81,671 | § 3,195 391 % 78,476 96.09

84 |{Member Digital Content Exp $ 194,179 | § 194,179 100.00| $ - 0.00

85 {Marketing $ 10,000 | § 587 5.87| % 9,413 94,13

86 |Member MKE Mixer Exp $ 1,400 | $ 821 58.64| 8 579 41.36

87 |Total General Expenditures $ 2,869,498 | $ 1,863,826 64.95| § 1,005,672 35.05

88

39 Special Expenditures

90 |W. Milwaukee Borrowing Expense $ 52,439 1 § 52,439 100.00] § - 0.00

91 |RB - MCFLS Payment Expense $ 1,078,804 | § 1,068,994 99.09] $ 9,810 0.91

92 [Ecommerce Expense $ 200,000 | § 134,701 6735 % 65,299 32.65

93 | Total Special Expenditures $ 1,331,243 | $ 1,256,134 94.36) § 75,109 5.64

94

95 |Total Expenditures 3 4,200,741 | § 3,119,960 7427 § 1,080,781 25.73 :
96
97 |Revenue/Expenditures +/- $ 954,953

Financial Report 8/31/18

Attachment C (10/15 /18)
10/9/2018 at 11:15 AM For Management Purposes Only Page 2 of 2



October 2018 Page 40 MCFLS Board

10/15/18

To: Milwaukee County Federated Library System Board of Trustees

From: Steve Heser, director
Re: 2019 West Milwaukee charges based on October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018 reciprocal

borrowing fiscal year.

Following are the calculations used to determine the amount due to the Milwaukee County
Federated Library System (MCFLS) for payment for use of MCFLS member libraries by Village of
West Milwaukee residents for the year 2019. The long-standing formula combines reciprocal
borrowing and automation charges.

Reciprocal Borrowing Charges

1 County Population (2018 est. WI Dept. of Administration) 950,381

2 West Milwaukee Population (2018 est. WI Dept. of Administration 4,159

3 Total circulation 10/01/17 - 09/30/18 at all MCFLS libraries 6,199,822

4 10/01/17- 09/30/18 circulation to West Milwaukee residents 15,984

5 2016 MCFLS member expenditures $39,401,397

6 | Per capita expenditures (Line 5/ Line 1) $41.46

7 County per capita circulation (Line 3 / Line 1) 6.52

8 | West Milwaukee per capita circulation (Line 4 / Line 2) 3.84

9 West Milwaukee per capita circulation expenditure formula: West $24.42
Milwaukee per capita circulation divided by county per capita circulation
multiplied by county per capita expenditure. (Line 8 / Line 7 X Line 6)

10 | West Milwaukee reciprocal borrowing costs (Line 2 X Line 9) $101,582

Automation Charges
Computer System Charges: 100% of all applicable charges x % of circulation attributed to West
Milwaukee residents.

11 | 2018 MCFLS automation costs: catalog enhancement, software and server | $469,699
costs, ITT maintenance, OCLC, telecomm.

12 | Total MCFLS Circulation 6,199,822

13 | West Milwaukee Circulation 15,984

14 | West Milwaukee portion of total circulation (Line 13 / Line 12) 0.2578%

15 | West Milwaukee automation costs (Line 11 X Line 14) $1,211

16 | Total West Milwaukee costs (Line 10 + Line 15) $102,793

2019 West Milwaukee Charges
Attachment D (10/15/18)
Pagelof2



October 2018 Page 41 MCFLS Board

Per-circ rates and costs for West Milwaukee Residents
10/01/17-09/30/18 (2019 payout)
Library Circulation Per-circ rate | Cost !
Brown Deer 331 § 25118 831 :
Cudahy 278 § 232 |8 645
Franklin 254 $ 26438 671
Greendale 136 § 2.59 ' § 352
Greenfield 286] $ 3.83 18 1,095
Hales Corners 3201 $ 377 1% 1,206
Milwaukee 3,685| § 4,06 | § 14,961
Norih Shore 99| § 3.10 | § 307
Oak Creek 136 § 25718 350
St. Francis 95§ 394 |8 374
Shorewood 131/ § 264 | $ 346
South Milwaukee 152] $ 42018 638
Wauwatosa 427 § 261 % 1,114
West Allis 9,471 $ 3.13 | $ 29,044
Whitefish Bay 183] $ 208§ 381

15,984] $ 3.07 ] $ 52916

Average

2019 West Milwaukee Charges
Attachment D (10/15/18)
Page2of 2



MCFLS 2019 Preposed Budget

QOctober 15th, 2018

October 2018 Page 42 MCFLS Board

1
2 2018 Revised Budget 2019 Draft Chanpe
3| General Revenues
4|State Aid Revenue 8 2,766,162 | $ 2,855317 |$ 89,155
5| Milwaukee County Allocation $ 66,650 | § 66,650 | § -
6| West Milwaukee Contract -Other $ 48,160 | $ 49,877 | § 1,717
7|Interest on Invested Funds $ 2,000 | § 2,000 | § -
8 |Member Forms/Supplies Revenue 3 25,000 | $ 25,000 | $ -
9|Member Postage Revenue 3 25,000 | § 25,000 | $ -
10| Member OCLC Revenue $ 113,232 1 § 116,297 | $ 3,065
11 |Member Telecomm, Revenue $ 9,000 | % 16,800 | $ 7,800
12|Member II1 Sofiwre Maint-Basic $ 198,088 | § 200,838 | § 2,750
13 |Member III Softwre Maint-Other $ 43,050 | $ 45473 | § 2,423
14 |Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev. $ 15,000 | § 15,000 | § -
15 |Member Special Projects Revenu $ 80,000 | § 80,000 | § -
16|Meimber Cataloging Contract Rev $ 149,006 | § 149,846 | § 840
17 {Member Database Revenue $ 77,132 | § 72,336 | §  (4,796)
18|Member Catalog Enhancement Rev $ 24,160 | § 25,627 | $ 1,467
19| Member Ecommerce Transaction $ 9,000 | § 9,000 | § -
20| TNS Calls/Noticss Revenue $ 5,600 | § 3,000 | $ (2,600
21| Carryover Revenue $ 68,403 | § 35,000 | § (33,403)
22| Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue $ 28,082 | $ 35,804 | § 7,722
23 Member Digital Content Rev $ 194,179 | § 216,732 | § 22,553
24 Member PC Management License Rev $ 2,545 | § 2,545
25| MemberMKE Mixers Revenue $ 1,400 | § 1,400 | § -
26| Total General Revenues $ 3,948,304 | § 4,049,542 | § 101,238
27
28 |Special Revenues
29 'W. Milwaukee Borrowing Revene 5 52,437 | $ 52,916 | $ 479
30|Ecommerce Revenue b 200,000 | § 200,000 | $ -
31{Total Special Revenues $ 252,437 | § 252916 | % 479
32
33|Total Revenues $ 4,200,741 | § 4,302,458 | § 101,717
34
35
36 2018 Revised Budget| 2019 Draft Change
37
38|General Expenditures
39|Fringe Benefits Expense $ 161,845 | § 179,610 | § 17,765
40)|Salaries Expense $ 340,208 | § 374,158 | § 33,950
41|Telephone Renewal Expense $ 1,600 | § 1,000 | $ (600)
42 \Member Ecommerce Transaction E $ 9,000 | § 9,000 | § -
43|TNS Calls/Notices Expense $ 5,600 | $ 3,000 | § (2,600)
44 Mileage/Auto Maint Expense $ 700 | § 700 | § .
45|Conference/Training Expense $ 8,000 | § 8,000 | $ -
46! Memberships Expense $ 8,000 | § 6,000 | §  (2,000)
47!Continuing Education Expense $ 8,750 | § 8750 1 § -
48 Office Supplies Expense $ 1,000 | § 1,000 | §
49| Copy Machine Maint. Expense $ 1,200 | § 1,200 | §
50| MCFLS Printing Expense $ 500 | 3 500§
51 MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense $ 5,000 | § 5,000 | § -
52|MCFLS W1 Pub Lib Consortium Ex $ 10,616 | $ 5,605 | §  (5,011)
53 |MCFLS Buying Pool $ 110,000 | § 110,000 | § -
54|MCFLS Database Expense $ 20,000 | § 20,700 | § 700
55 Member Database Expense $ 77,132 1 § 72,336 | 8 (4,796)
2019 Proposed MCFLS Budget
10/9/2018 at 11:15 AM For Management Purposes Only Attachment E {10/15/18)

Page1of 3




MCFLS 2019 Proposed Budget

Qctober 15th, 2018

October 2018 Page 43 MCFLS Board

56|MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe $ 72,000 | § 65,674 | §  (6,326)

57|Member Catalog Enhancement Exp $ 24,160 | § 25,627 | § 1,467

58 MCFLS Postage Expense $ 600 | § 600 | § -

59 Member Postage Expense $ 25,000 1 % 25,000 | § -

60 Member Forms/Supplies Expense $ 25,000 | § 25,000 | § -

61| Telephone Expense $ 5,000 | § 5,000 | § -

62 |Meetings Expense $ 500 | § 500 | 3 -

63 | Insurance Expense $ 11,257 | $ 11,500 | $ 243

64| Legal Expense $ 500§ 500 | $ -

65| Audit Expense $ 12,000 | § 12,250 1 § 250

66 | Payroll Service Expense $ 4,000 | § 4,200 | § 200

67,111 Software Support Expense $ 241,138 | § 246,311 | § 5,173

68| 111 Telephone Notification Subscr Exp $ 12,224 | § 12,224

69| Member Telecomm. Expense $ 16,800 | § 16,800 | § -

70/ MCFLS Teleconum. Maint. Expense 5 10,000 | § 10,000 | § -

71|OCLC Expense $ 125,461 | § 130,165 | § 4,704

72|MCFLS Computer Room Equipment b 50001 % 5,000 | § -

73|MCFLS Software Expense 3 2,500 | § 2,500

74|MCFLS Equipment Expense 5 15,650 | § 12,000 | §  (3,650)

75| Member Special Projects Expens 5 80,000 | $ 80,000 | $ -
76|Sorting and Delivery Expense 5 291,700 | § 291,700 | $ -

771South Central Delivery Expense $ 21,250 | § 21,697 | § 447

78| Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. B 1,000 | § 1,000 | § -

79 MPL Resource Contract Expense $ 179,801 | § 185,596 | § 5,795

80|MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. § 128,530 | § 129,815 | 1,285

§1|ILS Expense $ 36,450 | § 37,000 | $ 550

82 MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL $ 276,676 | § 285,532 | § 8,856

83 |Member Catalog Contract Exp. $ 149,006 | §$ 149,846 | $ 340

84 MCFLS Collection Dev Tool $ 28,000 | $ 28,000 | $ -

85 |Internet Expense $ 20,500 | § 20,500 | § -

86 |Contingency Expense $ 87,789 | § 29,029 | §  (58,760)

87 Member Digital Content Exp $ 194,179 | § 216,732 | § 22,553

88| Marketing $ 10,000 | § 10,000 | $ -

89 MCFLS Strategic Planning Exp $ 4,800 | § 4,800

90| Coaperative Purchasing Sub Exp $ 3,000 | § 3,000

91|Member PC Management License Exp $ 1,875 | § 1,875

92 |Member MKE Mixer Expense $ 1,400 | § 1,400 | $ -

93 | Total General Expenditures 3 2,869,498 | § 2914932 | § 45434

94

95 |Special Expenditures

96|W. Milwaukee Borrowing Expense 3 52439 | § 52,916 | § 477

97|RB - MCFLS Payment Expense b 1,078,804 | § 1,034,610 | § (44,194)

98 |Ecommerce Expense $ 200,000 | § 200,000 | $ -

99! Sierra Server Implementation 5 100,000 | $ 100,000
100 | Total Special Expenditures ¥ 1,331,243 | § 1,387,526 | $ 56,283
101
102 |Total Expenditures $ 4,200,741 | § 4302458 | § 101,717
103
104
105 Revenue/Expenditures +/- b - b (0 $ {0)

2019 Proposed MCF .
Attachment T (10/15,L/81:33)udgBt
10/9/2018 at 11:15 AM For Management Purposes Only Page 2 of 3



October 15, 2018

To: MCFLS Board of Trustees
From: Steve Heser, MCFLS Director
Re: 2019 proposed MCFLS Budget

An explanation of some of the changes in 2019:

October 2018 Page 44 MCFLS Board

Line 4--State Aid revenue. Reflects second part of two-year increase.

Lines 11 and 69—Pass-through for member libraries. TEACH paid for all internet
lines for member libraries in the second half of 2017; this impacted the 2018
number.

Lines 17 and 55— Pass-through for member libraries; includes member library
payments for Gale Courses, Ancestry and Mango Languages.

Lines 22, 39 and 40—health insurance costs are rising for staff. Copays are
increasing 108%. Fringe benefits reduced 6.6% for MCFLS. Proposed 2% increase
in staff salaries.

Line 23— Pass-through for member libraries; costs for OverDrive, RBDigital
magazines and hoopla. Member libraries are adding an additional $20,000 for
hoopla in 2019.

Line 52—WPLC consortium expense is lowered because of change to bylaws. All
members now pay an equal share.

Line 56—Negotiated $6,000 lower cost for content enhancement product Novelist
Select. Price good for three years with minor escalators. : :
Line 68—MCFLS will pay for ITIVA notification service in 2019. Possible shift in |
costs to member libraries starting in 2020.

Lines 79 and 82—Resource Library and Cataloging Contract. These higher expenses
are tied to increased state aid in 2019. !
Line 84—MCFLS Collection Development tool (CollectionHQ). Shared costs with
MPL for 2019, Most likely shift more costs to member libraries in 2020.
Line 90—WILS Cooperative Purchasing subscription. Any interested library could
use WILS for discounted purchasing of electronic resources and/or office products.
Line 97—Reciprocal borrowing. Reflects reductions from overpayment in 2018 and
1% percentage reduction in 2019 per ILS, Resource Sharing and Technology
agreement.

Line 99—Sierra Server implementation. Servers are at their end of life in 2019.

2019 Proposed MCFLS Budget
Attachment E (10/15/18)
Page3of 3



October 2018 Page 45 MCFLS Board

!
Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction INSTRUCTIONS: Complete and submit one copy of this Word !
PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM PLAN AND document along with one signed, scanned copy in PDF format :
to the Division for Libraries and Technolegy by MONDAY :
giﬂggﬁg&iﬁ Z(')T; ENTTO COMPLY OCTOBER 15, 2018. Submit completed Word and PDF !
k documents to:
PI-2446 (Rev. 08-18)

Required by Wis. Stat. §§ 43.17(5) and 43.24(3) LibraryReport@dol.wi.coy

GENERAL INFORMATION

Library System !
Milwaukee County Federated Library System

Describe demographic, economic, and other facts about your system that influenced the development of this and other system plans.

The Milwaukee County Federated Library System (MCFLS) consists of 15 member libraries, 18 conumunities, and 28 library
locations serving more than 950,000 people.

Although Milwaukee County makes up just under 2% of the square mileage in Wisconsin, more than 16% of the population |
lives there. Population density is almost ten times the state average. Additionally, every community but one (West Milwaukee)

directly supports a municipal library. Because the member libraries are so close to each other with no rural areas in between,

MCFLS member libraries need to work together closely to meet the needs of a population that ofter doesn't notice or

understand the differences between each library. This has affected the development of this plan and other plans--most directly

the most recent MCFLS strategic plan, which sought to provide additional services to be shared equitably by all member

libraries. MCFLS will complete additional strategic planning later in 2018 through 2019 to inform budget priorities for

member contracts and provide a strong foundation to provide system services for all county residents,

Along with a much higher density in the system, Milwaukee County has significant diversity, both racially and socio-
economically, Milwaukee County is 27% African-American and 15% Hispanic origin, both of which are much higher than in
the state as a whole. The County also faces a higher poverty level than the state as a whole, and the median household income
of $45,263 is only 83% of the state-wide level of $54,610. These circumstances directly affect how member libraries are used.
Members discuss the need for removing barriers to access caused by excessive fines, Also, use of digital and streaming media
is affected by the demographic characteristics in the county, with lower-than-average circulation of Overdrive titles, The
system partners with member libraries to provide access to online courses in an effort to provide job fraining,

Additionally, all member libraries in Milwankee County have directors at the Grade 1 level, and no 2017 MCFLS library

expenditures were below $500,000. The size of the member libraries, and their resulting resource levels, means MCFLS does

not provide services other systems in the state may provide out of necessity. For instance, it is unusual for MCFLS staff to

offer a great deal of consulting help on hiring issues simply because member libraries are well staffed and supported by their

municipalities to provide this service, i
Describe significant needs and problems that influenced the development of this and other system plans.

As part of the MCFLS strategic plan, member libraries identified several areas of need for the system to concentrate on. In
2018, MCFLS has devoted significant finds to streaming movies, music, and graphic novels to meet member library needs.
Although the service has been popular, rising costs force the system and members to continually re-evaluate this investment. -

Many of the member library communities are struggling with revenue for their library. Although state aid for MCFLS has ,
increased recently, member libraries and MCFLS struggle to balance the need for new services with existing financial
commitments. The current set of contracts for the member libraries provides increased services but has shifted some costs to !
members which were previously managed through the system. Many member libraries rely heavily on MCFLS reciprocal i
borrowing and resource library payments; these payments provide important services for member libraries directly, The larger

impact is that while these contracts provide some relief to member libraries, system services may suffer in comparison to

others within the state.

Describe the planning environment and process under which this and other system plans were developed. Include how member libraries are involved
in plan development and review and whether your system has a formally appointed advisory committee. If an advisory commitiee is appointed under
Wis. Stat. § 43.17(2m), how are appointments made, meetings posted, and how does the commlifee report to the board? {List additional system
planning documents with the period covered and attach any planning documents which have not previously been provided to the division.}

The Library Director's Advisory Council (LDAC) has significant ongoing input on system planning and reviews the system
plan annually. The MCFLS Board of Trustees reviews and approves the plan along with providing input on MCFLS strategic
initiatives throughout the year, Previously submitted planning documents include the Milwaukee County Federated Library
System Strategic Plan, the Interlibrary Serveies Contract with the Milwaukee Public Library, the 2016-2019 Cataloging

2019 MCFLS System Plan
Attachment F (10/15/18)
Pagelof 8



October 2018 Page 46 MCFLS Board

Pl-2446

GENERAL INFORMATION {cont’d.}

Contract, the MCFLS Membership Agreement, the 2016-2019 ILS, Resource Sharing, and ecolog greemt, and the
2016-2019 Resource Library Agreement.

ASSURANCES

The following plan and compliance document provides assurance that your public library system intends to comply with all statutory requirements for
public library systems for calendar year 2019. Indicate, with a check, your system’s intent to comply with each system requirement and provide the
requested information under each system requiremant.

Wis. Stat. § 43.24(2) For a public library system to qualify for and maintaln Its eligiblllty for state aid under this section it shall ensure that
all of the following are provided:

Membership Agreements
iZ| (a) Written agreements that comply with Wis. Stat. § 43.15(4}(c}4. with all member libraries.

A copy of the agreement with a list of all members signing and the dates signed provided to the division by January 15.

Rescurce Library Agreement '

X (k) Backup reference, information and interlibrary loan services from the system resource library, Including the development of and access to
specialized collections, as evidenced by a written agreement with that library.

A slgned copy of the resource library agreement will be provided to the division by January 15.

Reference Referral, Interlibrary Loan, and Technology

|Z Wis. Stat. § 43.24(2)(d) Referral or routing of reference and interlibrary loan requests from libraries within the system to libraries within and outside
the system,

List ongelng actlvities related to this requirement.

MCFLS contracts with the Milwaukee Public Library 1o provide this service to all member libraries, The Milwaukee Public
Library also contracts with the Reference and Loan Library to meet an agreed upon number of requests from Wisconsin
residents for interlibrary loan materials. Interlibrary loan requests within the system are handled through the shared ILS and
system-provided delivery.

MCFLS contracts with the Milwaukee Public Library to provide back-up reference as the system resource library. As part of
the 2016-2019 Resource Library contract, MPL also provides training, consulting, and other assistance to other member
libraries and their staff. An annual report of resource library activities is shared with the MCFLS Board each February.

MCELS provides:

*remote authentication services for reference databases that member libraries offer to the public;

*online forms for public requests for new materials; i
*gystem-wide email through Outlook 360 and website hosting;

*coordination of the use of third-party products working with the ILS, including computer management software, RFID
software, and enhanced content for the online catalog;

*regular lists of popular materials in the library catalog;

*and coordination of group purchasing of electronic databases,

*A major service program MCFLS supports is reciprocal borrowing across municipal borders, This ongoing activity supports
net lender member libraries through the distribution of 38% of state aid and supports thoge librarics in their ability to offer
quality service and collections for all users. This is an ongoing activity for 2019.

*MCFLS contracts with the Milwaukee Public Library to provide all cataloging for materials in the system,

Indicate new or priority activities relating to this requirement for the plan year. If none, indicate so.

*WICFLS has plans to provide WiFi hotspots to member libraries for remote access to the MCFLS network to allow for patron
registration off site at schools, fairs, farmers' markets, etc.

*MCFLS will upgrade its website to Wordpress and knowledgebase to LibGuides CMS to better setrve staff needs for
informetion related to procedures and system policies.

2019 MCFLS System Plan
Attachment F (10/15/18) ,
Page 2 of 8



October 2018 Page 47 MCFLS Board

Pl-2446 Page 3
= e = T -

ASSURANCES (cont'd.)

Bk

§ to its current discovi

*Pending completion of the 2018-19 strategic planning process, the system will investigate alternative ery
layer and mobile catalog solutions.

*Pending board approval, MCFLS plans to replace two servers responsible for providing the Innovative Sierra ILS software.

Inservice Training

Wis. Stat. § 43.24(2){e} Inservice training for participating public library personnel and trustees.

List ongoing activitles related to this requirement.

MCFLS continues to participate as a member of the SEWI continuing education consortinm, managed through the Bridges
Library system. Through this partnership, MCFLS offers member libraries regular continuing education opportunities. The
MCFLS director assumes primary responsibility for continuing education planning, with MCFLS staff reviewing CE hours
related to member library director certification. MCFLS also provides more than a dozen in-person, hands on training sessions
through staff and vendor representatives on MCFLS-specific products and services. Regular training on ILS functionality is
provided, as is training on digital streaming services and traditional databases. Additionally, MCFLS participates financially in
statewide online training events, such as the Trustee Training Week and Wild Wisconsin Winter Webinar series. MCFLS and
member library staff have also participated as speakers in these series.

Indicate new or prlority actlvities relating to this requirement for the plan year. If none, indicate so.

MCTFLS staff will be again offering a set of training sessions designed to improve staff knowledge of the Sierra ILS and
electronic resources offered throughout the system. Last year we offered basic circulation and cataloging training for staff and
we plan on building on that training.

List specific staff and resources dedicated to this requirement and/or confract arrangements with other libraries or systems.

Delivery and Communication

Wis. Stat. § 43.24 (2){fm) Electronic delivery of information and physical delivery of library materials to participating libraries,
List ongoing activities related to this requirement. For physical delivery reference resources, personnel, and vendors.
MCFLS administers system-wide daily (M-F) physical delivery to every library in the system through a contract with Action
Logistics, MCFLS fully funds this service for member libraries. MCFLS also funds regular delivery to other systems through
the South Central Library Delivery service. In 2017 MCFLS improved its ability to provide electronic delivery of information
through an email upgrade to Cffice 365 for all member libraries. MCFLS manages the wide area network connecting member
libraries to the catalog and out to the internet. MCFLS also manages and funds the library's internet connection through
WiscNet.

Indicate new or priority activities relating to this requirement for the plan year. If none, indicafe so.

# MCFLS plans an upgrade to its website using Wordpress and commurnication to staff with a conversion of our knowledgebase !
to LibGuides CMS. ‘

Service Agreements
Wis, Stat, § 43.24(2){g) Service agreements with all adjacent library systems.

IZ| A copy of the agreement with adjacent systems with a list of all systems signing the agreement will be provided to the division by January 15.

2019 MCFLS System Plan, =
Attachment F (10/15/18)
Page3of g



October 2018 Page 48 MCFLS Board

Pl-2446

ASSURANCES (cont’d.)

Other Types of Libraries

|Z] Wis. Stal, § 43.24(2}(L) Cooperation and continuous planning with other typses of libraries in the system area, which resuits in agreemenis with
those libraries for the appropriate sharing of library resources to benefit the clientele of all libraries in the system area.

The system will have agreements with other types of libraries, or if the system participates in a cooperation agreement with a multitype organization
o meet the purposes of this goal, there is established a clear link between the system and the individual members ¢f the multitype organization. A
copy of the agreement with a list of all signing librariss will be provided to the division by January 15.

IZ| Other types of libraries in the system area have had an opportunity to review and comment on the plan.

Library Technology and Resource Sharing Plan

Wis, Stat, § 43.24{2}(m} Planning with the division and with participating public libraries and other types of libraries in the area in regard to library
tachnology and the sharing of resources. By January 1, 2000, and every fifth January 1 thereafter, the public library system shall submit to the
division a written plan for library technology and the sharing of resources.

|E Member public libraries and other types of libraries In the system area have had an opportunity to review and comment on the plan.

By January 1, 20119, the system's clrrent plan for library technology and resource sharing or changes to the current plan will be submitted to the
division.

Indicate new or priority activities relating fo this requirement for the plan year.

Professional Consultation

Wis, Stat, § 43.24(2)(h) Professional consultant services to participating public libraries.
Specifically identify consultants, thelr service areas, and related actlvities.
MCFLS staff provide direct consulting to member libraries. The MCFLS director consults libraries on staffing, legal issues,
continuing education, library boards, and the annual report. The MCFLS network manager consults with member libraries on
all technology-related questions, including full inventories of member library equipment, He also assists libraries with upgrades
and direct management of Hibrary equipment. The MCFLS ILS administrator consults libraries on ILS questions, databases and
authentication, and streaming services,
Indicate new or priority activities relating to this requirement for the plan year.
None
Indicate specific methods or means of communication with membker libraries to fulfill this requirement.

Direct monthly meetings with library directors; frequent use of email; telephone,

Inclusive Services

D Wis. Stat. § 43.24(2)(k) Promotion and facilitation of library service to users with special needs.

The division interprets services to users with special needs as inclusive services. Inclusive library services are holistic, spanning library policies,
collections, space, and services. Inclusive services reflect equity and accessibility for all members of the community, including services to
individuals or groups for whom using the public library is difficult, limited, or minimized.

List ongoing activitles related to this requirement.

The Milwaukee Bucks reading program is managed through the MCFLS office. The system also has used resources to add
Spanish language materials to the Overdrive collection. The system supports multiple member libraries with Memory Café
programs including financial support for the South Shore Libraries Memory Café. MCFLS has participated in the LibraryNow
project (Milwaukee Public Library) since its inception. This project puts access to library resources into the hands of all
Milwaukee Public School students, including many underserved or marginalized young people. Standing library committees,
including the Adult & Reference Services comunittee, the Youth Services committee, and the Young Adult services committee,
frequently include inclusive services as a topic in their regular meetings. For example, the Adult & Reference Services
committee will have special presentations on serving the homeless and providing services to those with dementia in 2018-2019,

Indicate new or priority activities relating to this requirement for the plan year.

MCFLS will continue to expand its role in the LibraryNow project with Milwaukee Public Libraries, offering data and research
support for the project. Seton Catholic schools were added in 2018; more academic organizations may soon be added. ;

Indicate specific methods or means of communication with member libraries to fulfill this requirement.

Direct monthly meetings with library directors; frequent use of email; telephone.

2019 MCFLS System Plan
Attachment F (10/15/18)
Page4of 8



October 2018 Page 49 MCFLS Board
PI-2446

Page 6

ASSURANCES {cont'd.}

Qther Service Programs

Wis. Stat. § 43.24(2)(i) Any other service programs designed to meet the needs of participating public libraries and the residents of the system
area, as determined by the public library system board after consultation with participating public libraries.

List each “other” service program Individually with angoing activities and new or priority activities for the plan year under each program. Forinstance,

If the system provides a bookmobile service program, list ongoing activities and new or priority activities for the bookmabile program. (Do not lump
miscellaneous activities under a single “other” program.}

Adminlstratlon

The system will ot expend more than 20 percent of the state aid projected 1o be received in the plan year for administration.

|Z| The 2018 system audit will be submitted to the division no later than September 30, 2019.

Budget

A copy of your public library system budget by service program category and fund source for the plan year is attached (see guidelines). :

2019 MCFLS System Plan

Attachment F (10/15/18) =
Page5of 8



October 2018 Page 50 MCFLS Boarqu

Page 6 Pl-2446

COLLABORATIVE ACTIVITIES

Summary of Activities Briefly describe collaborative activities with other libraries, public library systems, and other organizations. Exclude services and

activities listed in the system’s 2019 resource library contract.

MCFLS will continue to collaborate with other systems to provide support for Trustee Training Week which continues to grow in

popularity. The system also offers financial support for the Wild Wisconsin Winter Web Conference. The collaboration with |
SEWI to provide high quality continuing education for our member libraries is extremely valuable and a model for the state. The |
system also collaborates and offers tech support and assistance for Tech Days each September. MCFLS is also currently
investigating collaborations with other systems for Dell computer and hardware purchases, firewall solutions and backup space,
some of which could come to fruition in 2019.

Cost Benefit For each activity above, list the acfivity name and esfimated cost benefit realized.

Activity Amount

1. Trustee Training Week $1,500

2. SEWI Continuing Education Program $15,000

3. Wild Wisconsin Winter Web Conference $1,500

4, Tech Days $2,500

5.

8.

7.

8.

9.

10.
Cost Benefit Total $20,500 E

2019 MCFLS System Plan
Attachment ¥ {10/15/18)
Page 60of 8§




PI-2446

October 2018 Page 51 MCFLS Board

2019

BUDGET INCREASE ACTIVITIES

Page 7

Summary of Activities Identify any specific activities and allocations supporting broadband access, warkforce development, and lifeiong learning.

MCFLS has had an ongoing subscription to Gale Courses for several years, This resource provides training in several important
areas of workforce development and lifelong learning, including Microsoft Office product training and project management,
Participation in the Wisconsin Public Library Consortium has enriched our member libraries' ability to provide lifelong learning
opportunities for all county residents. Recent upgrades to system-site hardware, networking equipment and TEACH internet lines
has allowed the system to provide the necessary infrastructure to support member libraries and their technology needs, but this is an

ongoing challenge.

Cost Benefit For each activity above, list the activity name and estimated cost benefit realized,

Activity Amount

1. Ongoing systemwide subscription to Gale Courses $100,000
2. Upgrades to hardware and networking equipment $30,000
3. TEACH Internet lines $50,000
4, Participation in the WPLC and OverDrive $200,000
5.
8.

Cost Benefit Total $380,000

i

CERTIFICATION

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, CERTIFY that o the best of our knowledge, the information provided in this document and any attachments is true and

correct, and that the system will be in full compliance with all applicable provisions of Chapter 43 of the Wisconsin Statutes for the year 2019.

Name of System Director

Stever: Heser

Signature of System Director

>

Date Signed Mo./Day/Yr.

Name of System Board President

Paul Ziehler

Signature of System Board President

>

LIBRARY SYSTEM PLAN APPROVAL

FOR DPI USE

Pursuant to Wis. Statutes, the plan contained herein is:

Date Signed Mo./Day/Yr.

DLT Assistant Superintendent Signature Date Signed Mo./Day/Yr.
|:| Approved
I:] Provisionally Approved See Comments. p
|:| Not Approved See Comments.
Comments
2019 MCFLS System Plan

Attachment F (10/15/18)
Page 7 of 8



PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM 2019
ANNUAL PROGRAM BUDGET

2019 System Aid Ofher State an
Public Library Carryover and Federal Library
Program System Aid Interest Earned Program Funds All Other Income Total

Technology, Reference, and Interlibrary Loan®

1. Technology $683,275 $2,000 $986,178 | -
2, Reference $185,596
3.Interlibrary Loan $37,000
4. Electronic Resources $138,476 $35,000 $251,897
Program Total $1,044,347 $37,000 $0 $1,238,075
Continuing Education and Consulting Service*
1. Continuing Education $50,189 - = = . W;wwii
= ]
2, Consulting $72,474 MMX =
Program Total $122,663 $0 $0 $0 $122,663
Delivery Services $324,669 $324.,669
Library Services to Special Users $7,108 $7,108
Library Collection Development $0
Rirect Payment to Members for $1,034,610 $52,916 $1,087,526
E:;:-nteﬁfsnzzsrt':: tscgtc:r:sBorders 50
Library Services to Youth $3,972 $3,972
Public Information $43,696 $43,696
Administration $329,984 $329,984
Subtotal $1,744,039 $0 $0 $52,916 $1,796,955
Other System Programs
1. Multi-type $7,918 $7,918
2. Member office $3,000 $52,500 $55,500
Program Total $10,918 $0 $0 $52,500 $63,418
Grand Totals $2,921,967 $37,000 $0 $1,343,491 $4,302,458
* These programs may be divided into subprograms at the discretion of the system. If choosing not to use subprograms, enter amounts on line 1.
Line 4 is reserved for the amounts budgsted for electronic resources (see Program Budget Guidelines).
2019 MCFLS System Plan
Attachment F (10/15/18)

Page 8 of 8




October 2018 Page 53 MCFLS Board
|

CONSOLIDATED DELIVERY AND SORTING SERVICES CONTRACT 2019

Service Description: Provision of consclidated delivery and sorting services for |
the inter-library loan program of the Milwaukee County Federated Library
System.

Time of Performance: January 2, 2019, to December 30, 2019

Amount of Contract: $1,092.00 base rate per delivery day. Service is Monday
through Friday except Holidays as indicated in Attachment A ~ Specifications,
General Terms and Conditions for the MCFLS 2016 2017 Consolidated Sorting and i

Delivery Services.

This CONTRACT, effective as of January 2, 2019, to December 30, 2019, is entered
into by and between the Milwaukee County Federated Library System,
(hereinafter referred to as the “SYSTEM”), and Action Logistics, LLC (hereinafter
referred to as the “CONTRACTOR")

Witnessed THAT:

WHEREAS, the CON'TRACTOR represents self as being capable, experienced, and
qualified to undertake and perform those certain services, as hereinafter set forth,

as are required in accomplishing fulfillment of the obligations under the terms and !
conditions of this Contract as an independent contractor and not as an employee of

the SYSTEM,

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:
(Page 1 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachunent G (10/15/18)
Page1 of 16



IL.

October 2018 Page 54 MCFLS Board

REQUIREMENTS: The CONTRACTOR is required to:

Al Do, perform, and carry out in a satisfactory, timely, and proper

manner the services delineated in this Contract.

B. Comply with requirements listed with respect to reporting on
progress of the services, additional approvals required, and other

matters relating to the performance of the services.

C. Comply with time schedules and payments terms.

SCOPE OF SERVICES. (To include specific duties and responsibilities,

deliverables, time schedules, deadlines, and approval requirements).

A, The scope of the Contractor’s services are specifically incorporated
and made a part of this contract as Attachments A and B,

respectively.

B. The contract will be effective for a two-year period, contingent upon
acceptable performance as determined at the end of each annual |

period.

C CONTRACTOR agrees to provide delivery services for the inter-
library loan program of the SYSTEM which will include all necessary
labor, three delivery vehicles and related expenses. A specific
delivery person/sorter will be assigned solely to this contract for
each of the three vehicles, along with two individuals who have been
cross-trained, on a Monday through Friday basis. Service times are
estimated to be from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. |

(Page 2 of 11) :

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page 2 of 16



October 2018 Page 55 MCFLS Board

CONTRACTOR shall complete background checks at

Contractor’s expense on all personnel prior to starting any activity
for the SYSTEM. CONTRACTOR shall confirm in writing to the
SYSTEM that they have successfully conducted the background
checks prior to the commencement of work and that CONTRACTOR
will not use any personnel for whom background checks have
revealed factors that make them unsuitable for the activity to be

undertaken for the SYSTEM. This includes replacement personnel.

At a minimum, resources to be checked should include, but are not

limited to, civil (hitp://weca wicourts.gov/index.xsl} and criminal

records (http:/ /wi-recordcheck.org/index html). Department of

Transportation motor vehicle/licensing records

(Iittp: / /www.dmv.ore / wi-wisconsin/ department-motor-

vehicles.php). In order to do so, CONTRACTOR must obtain certain
information for each of the CONTRACTOR’S employees expected to
be performing work for the SYSTEM. At a minimum, the
information shall include full name, date of birth and social security
information. Additional information that is helpful in completing
background checks includes maiden name, sex, race, driver’s license
number and issuing state and places of residence for the last three’

years.

NOTE: If the individual has resided outside of the State of Wisconsin
within the last three (3) years, CONTRACTOR will have to do

similar research within the state they resided in.

All costs associated with the background checks are to be borne by
the CONTRACTOR. All records received as a result of background

(Page 3 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page 3 of 16



October 2018 Page 56 MCFLS Boar(?ti

checks are to be retained by the CONTRACTOR for a period of three

(3) vears after contract expiration.

The SYSTEM reserves the right to request the results of the
background checks and/or to do additional background checks on

their own.

E. The delivery and sorting personnel of the CONTRACTOR will arrive
at SYSTEM headquarters at the MPL Central Library dock area
(entrance at 833 West Wells Street) to load the delivery vehicles.
[temns that are picked up from one delivery site shall be sorted
enroute and delivered to those libraries that have not yethad a
delivery stop for the day. Items that are picked up for a library that
has already had its final delivery for the day will be returned to the !
sorting room of the SYSTEM and delivered the next day.

E. CONTRACTOR agrees to adhere and comply with the general
operational requirements, staffing and vehicle requirements, \
standard hours of operation and penalties/incentives as outlined in |
Attachment A. Any and all changes must be agreed upon and

executed by written amendment.

G. CONTRACTOR agrees to keep in effect a Certificate of Insurance as
specified in Attachment A for the duration of this contract.

III.  SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after receipt of a properly
documented invoice according to the following schedules if completion is

satisfactory:
(Page 4 of 11}

2019 Delivery Contract |
Aftachment G (10/15/18) i
Page 4 of16 j



Iv.

October 2018 Page 57 MCFLS Board

The invoice must be received on or before the tenth (10t) of the succeeding
month for the previous month's activities. All invoices are to be mailed
directly to the Milwaukee County Federated Library System, 709 N. Eighth
St., Milwaukee, WI 53233,

2016 - $1092 daily rate plus allowable fuel surcharges in accordance with
chart listed in Attachment A.

2017 - $1092 daily rate plus allowable fuel surcharges in accordance with

chart listed in Attachment A.

NOTICES

Any and all notices shall be in writing and deemed served upon depositing
same with the United States Postal Services addressed to the
CONTRACTOR at:

Action Logisties, LLC

ATTENTION: Jim Tiderman, President

16235 West Ryerson Road

New Berlin W153151

And to the SYSTEM at;
Milwaukee County Federated Library System Board
ATTENTION: Steve Heser, Director

709 North Eighth Street

Milwaukee WI 53233
(Page 5 of 11)
2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)

Page 5 of 16



October 2018 Page 58 MCFLS Board

V. CONDITIONS OF PERFORMANCE AND COMPENSATION
A. PERFORMANCE

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the performance of the
CONTRACTOR’S work, services and the results therefrom, pursuant
to the terms, conditions, and agreements of this Contract, shall
conform to such recognized high professional standards as are

prevalent in this field of endeavor and like services.

B. TAXES, SOCIAL SECURITY, INSURANCE, AND GOVERNMENT
COMPLIANCE
Personal income tax payments, social security contributions,
insurance, and all other governmental reporting and contributions
required as a consequence of the CONTRACTOR receiving payment
under this Contract shall be the sole responsibility of the
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all

applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

C. SUBCONTRACTING

The CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for the performance of any
of the services herein set forth without prior written approval
obtained from the SYSTEM.

VI. INDEMNIFICATION AND DEFENSE OF SUTTS.

The CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend
the SYSTEM and all SYSTEM member libraries, its officers, agents, and
employees from any and all liability including claims, demands, damages,
actions or causes of action; together with any and all losses, costs, or

(Page 6 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page 6 of 16



VIL

VIIL

IX.

October 2018 Page 59

expense, including attorney fees, where such liability is founded upon or
grows out of the acts, errors, or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, its

employees, agents or subcontractors.

REGULATIONS.

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all of the requirements of all

federal, state and local laws related thereto.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE

If through any cause, the CONTRACTOR shall fail to fulfill in timely and
proper manner its obligations under this Contract, or if the CONTRACTOR
shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of the
Contract, the SYSTEM shall thereupon have the right to terminate this
Contract by giving written notice to the CONTRACTOR of such
termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days

before the effective date of termination,

Notwithstanding the above, the CONTRACTOR shall not be relieved of
liability to the SYSTEM for damages sustained by the SYSTEM by virtue of
any breach of the Contract by the CONTRACTOR, and the SYSTEM may
withhold any payments to the CONTRACTOR for the purpose of set off
until such time as the exact amount of damages due to the SYSTEM from

the CONTRACTOR is determined.

CHANGES

The SYSTEM may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of

services of the CONTRACTOR to be performed hereunder. Such changes,

including any increase or decrease in the amount of the CONTRACTOR’S
(Page 7 of 11}

MCFLS Board
|

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)

Page7 of 16



October 2018 Page 60 MCFLS Boaréj

compensation which are mutually agreed upon by and between the
SYSTEM and the CONTRACTOR, shall be incorporated in written

amendments to the contract.
X. WAIVER

Orne or more waivers by any party of any term of this contract

will not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach of

the same or any other term. The consent or approval given by

any party with respect to any act by the other party requiring such consent
or approval shall not be deemed to waive the need for further consent or

approval of any subsequent act by such party.
XI.  PERSONNEL

The CONTRACTOR represents that he has or will secure at his own
expense all personnel required in performing the services under this
Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual

relationship with the SYSTEM.

All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the
CONTRACTOR or under his supervision and all personnel engaged in this
work shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under

state and local law to perform such services.

XII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
A, INTEREST IN CONTRACT

No officer, employer or agent of the SYSTEM who exercises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of

any services or requirements to which this Contract pertains shall
(Page 8 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page 8 of 16



October 2018 Page 61 MCFLS Boart

have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract.
B. INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS

No public official who exercises any functions or responsibilities in
the review or approval of the carrying out of this Contract shall have

arny personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract.
C. INTEREST OF CONTRACTOR AND EMPLOYEES

The CONTRACTOR covenants that no person described in
Paragraph XIL.A. and XILB. above, who presently exercises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the Contract has any
personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract. The
CONTRACTOR further covenants that it has no interest and shall
not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in
any manner or degree with the performance of its services
hereunder. The CONTRACTOR further covenants that in any
performance of this Contract no person having any conflicting
interest shall be employed. An interest on the part of the
CONTRACTOR or its employees must be disclosed to the System.

XIIL. - DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED

In all hiring or employment made possible by or resulting from this
Confract there (1) will not be any discrimination against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, color, sexual orientation,
religion, gender, or national origin, and (2) affirmative action will be taken
to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated
during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sexual

orientation, gender, or national origin.
(Page 9 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page 9 of 16



XIV

XV.

October 2018 Page 62 MCFLS Board

INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall provide to the SYSTEM an affidavit or other
satisfactory proof which the SYSTEM may require evidencing that the
CONTRACTOR has obtained Worker's Compensation Insurance for all
persons performing any work or services under the Contract as is

required by the Worker's Compensation Act of the State of Wisconsin.

The CONTRACTOR will also at all times during the term of the Contract
keep in force and effect other insurance policies as required by the

contract.

No payments or disbursements under the Contract shall be made if such
proof has not been furnished. Failure to submit an insurance certificate, as

required, can make the contract void at the SYSTEM'S discretion.

FORCE MAJEURE

If the performance of any part of this Contract by either party is delayed
or rendered impossible by reason of natural disaster, flood, fire, riot,
explosion, war or actions or decrees of governmental bodies, the party
who has so been affected shall immediately give notice to the other party
of such conditions and the extent of delay and shall do everything
possible to resume performance. Upon receipt and acceptance of such
notice, all obligations under this Contract shall immediately be
suspended. If the period of nonperformance exceeds twenty-one (21) days
from the receipt of notice of the Force Majeure Event, the party whose
ability to perform has not been so affected nay, by giving written notice,

terminate this contract.

(Page 10 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachnent G (10/15/18)
Page 10 of 16



October 2018 Page 63 MCFLS Boar(jj

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the CONTRACTOR and the SYSTEM have
caused this Contract to be executed for and on their respective behalf as of

the dates hereinafter set forth.

MILWAUKEE COUNTY CONTRACTOR
FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM

By Action Logistics, LLC
Paul M. Ziehler, President

Date By

By Title
Steve Heser, Director

Date Date

(Page 11 of 11)

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment ¢ (10/15/18)
Page 11 of 16



October 2018 Page 64 MCFLS Board

ATTACHMENT A
SPECIFICATIONS, GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR THE MILWAUKEE COUNTY
FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM (MCFLS) 2019 CONSOLIDATED SORTING AND DELIVERY
SERVICES.

Pricing and Confract Term: This contract will be effective for a one year period. Pricing will be firm for the contract
period of January 2, 2019 through December 30, 2019, The CONTRACTOR shall be ready to assume operation of the
delivery service on January 2, 2019,

Fixed Daily Rate: Flat fixed daily rate of $1,092 for the term of this contract (the fuel will be addressed separately).
Should the volume increase or decrease by more than 25% over a three-month period (compared to the previous
year), the SYSTEM will evaluate the need to renegotiate the daily rate with the CONTRACTOR,

Fuel Surcharge:
The SYSTEM will allow a fuel surcharge based on the following chart. The rate will be determined on a weekly basis

referencing the Energy Information Administration office of the Department of Energy at
http://www giadoe.gov/. The weekly rate will be based on regular gasoline cost for the Midwest (PADD 2)

region.

Fuel Cost (price per gallon | Total Bill - Flat rate per day

2.10 and under 1,092.00

2.11t02.20 1,094.00

2.21 to 2.30 1,095.00

231t02.40 1,097.00

2.41 to 2.50 1,098.00

2.51 to 2.60 1,099.00

261 t02.70 1,101.00

2,71 to 2.80 1,102.00

2.81t0 2.90 1,104.00 :
291 to 3.00 1,105.00
3.01 to 3.10 1,106.00 :
3.11 t0 3.20 1,108.00

3.21 t0 3.30 1,109.00

3.31 to 3.40 1,110.00

3.41 t0 3.50 1,112.00

3.51 to 3.60 1,113.00

3.61 t03.70 1,115.00

3.71to 3.80 1,116.00

3.81 t03.90 1,117.00

3.91 to 4.00 1,119.00

4.01 to 4.10 1,120.00

4.11 to 4.20 1,122.00

4.21 to 4.30 1,123.00

431 t04.40 1,124.00

441 to 4.50 1,126.00

4.51 to 4.60 1,127.00 |
461 to 4.70 1,129.00
4.71 to 4.80 1,130.00
481 t04.90 1,132.00
4.91 to 5.00 1,133.00 i

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page 12 of 16



October 2018 Page 65 MCFLS Boar&]

!
i
|
i
!

5.01 to 5,10 1,135.00 i
51110 5.20 1,136.00
5.21 to 5.30 1,138.00
531 to 540 1,139.00 :
541 t0 5.50 1,141.00 |
5.51 to 5.60 1,142.00 '
561 to 5.70 1,144.00 5
5.71t05.80 1,145.00
5.81t05.90 1,147.00
5.91 to 6.00 1,148.00

Volume of Work: It is estimated that there are, on average, 250 incoming tubs and 250 outgoing tubs per day (all
routes combined.) Fach tub normally holds 50-75 items (not to exceed 50 Ibs. per tub), so a daily estimate of items
handled is 62.5 x 500 = 31,250 items daily (approximate).

31,250 x 249 days = 7,781,250 items annually (approximate).

Amendments to Contract: This contract may be modified only by written amendment to the contract, signed by both
parties,

Workers” Compensation and Bmployer’s Liability Insurance; Workers’ compensation insurance providing statutory
work’s compensation benefits and employer’s liability with a limit not less than $100,000.

Worker's Compensation Waiver of Subrogation: The SYSTEM and SYSTEM Member Libraries shall not be liable to
CONTRACTOR or its employees for any injuries to CONTRACTOR'S employees arising out of the performance of
work under this agreement. CONTRACTOR and its worker's compensation insurance carrier agree to waive any
and all rights of recovery from the SYSTEM and SYSTEM Member Libraries {for worker's compensation claims made
by its employees. The CONTRACTOR agrees that any indemnification and hold harmless provision within the
contract extends to any claims brought by or on behalf of any employee of the CONTRACTOR,

Commercial General Liabilily Insurance: Policy shall provide coverage for premises and operations, products and
completed operations, blanket contractual, personal injury. Limits of Hability not less than $500,000 each occurrence
and aggregate.

Automobile Liability: Business automobile policy covering all owned, hired and non-owned private passenger
autos and commercial vehicles, Limits of liability not less than $500,000.

Fidelity/Crime Coverage: Coverage for employee fidelity/dishonesty related to insured’s employees and agents,

including but not limited to theft or embezzlement of vehicles, materials, supplies, equipment, tools, money,

securities, etc., which result in loss to the SYSTEM and/or SYSTEM Member Libraries. Insurance shall protect the _
interests of the SYSTEM. Limit of liability not less than $25,000 per occurrence.

Late or Missed Delivery Charge: The SYSTEM will invoke monetary charges to the CONTRACTOR in the event of
failure to make deliveries as required, which shall be deducted from the next monthly payment to the
CONTRACTOR. 1} Each day no deliveries are made - The SYSTEM reserves the right to hire another courier
service or utilize 5YSTEM employees (total cost to include wages plus benefits) and deduct the total costs incurred
from the next invoice, 2) Each time a delivery site is missed - Full daily rate and gas surcharge divided by 27 stops
multiplied by the number of missed sites, These costs will be deducted from the next monthly invoice. Additionally,
continued faflure to make scheduled deliveries may result in contract termination.

Delivery Incentive: The SYSTEM will pay the CONTRACTOR two (2.0) days of the daily cost of delivery service,
where there have been no significant complaints or problems for a three-month period. It will be the responsibility

2019 Delivery Contract
© Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page13 of 16



October 2018 Page 66 MCFLS Board

of the CONTRACTOR to request the payment of the incentive on a quarterly basis and mutually agreed upon by the |
SYSTEM. ;

Monthly Billing: The CONTRACTOR will invoice the SYSTEM on a monthly basis for all services provided from the
first through the last working day of the previous month. Included with the invoice, shall be a printout, if needed,
of the weekly “Regular Gasoline Retafl Prices (Cents per Gallon}” Midwest (PADD 2) region, as documentation for
any additional fuel surcharge. The document of reference is found af the Energy Information Administration office
of the Departiment of Energy at htto:/ /www.eia.doe.gov/.

The invoice must be received by the SYSTEM on or before the tenth (10%) of the succeeding month for the previous
month’s activities. All invoices are to be mailed to the Milwaukee County Federated Library System, 709 N. §th
Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53233. The SYSTEM's responsibility in this regard is to process the invoices and
payment will be made within 30 days after receipt.

General Operational Requirements: The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for the pick up and delivery of library
materfals for the System as specified below from the Central Library of the Milwaukee Public Library to and from
SYSTEM member libraries:

The daily requirements Are:

The CONTRACTOR undertakes and agrees to sort, carry and deliver library materials consisting of books,
magazines, audio-visual materials, mail envelopes, etc., as well as boxes, tubs, ete., to the regular delivery locations
shown on ATTACHMENT B,

All itemns to be delivered will have an initial daily pickup peint at the dock area of the Central Library of the
Milwaukee Public Library, 833 West Wells 5t. Milwaukee W1 53233. All undelivered items shall be returned to the
Central Library dock/sorting area at the end of each day and stored in space designated for this purpose,

The CONTRACTOR will have the use of delivery bins that are the property of the SYSTEM. The SYSTEM will
provide additional or replacement bins as needed.

Some preliminary sorting (presorting of Central Library items #1) of materials occurs at each individual library site
excluding Wauwatosa and West Allis.

Delivery Requirements: The CONTRACTOR shall provide delivery services every Monday through Friday, 5 days
per week, and 52 weeks per year, to the 15-member, 27 public library sites listed in ATTACHMENT B. The
exceptions would be on the following major Holidays (11) and Other Exceplions, listed below. CONTRACTOR will
receive no compensation for the 11 designated Holiday days and any Other Exceptions, as defined below...

Holidays (11} and Other Exceptions: |
New Year's Eve - last normal workday before New Year's Day Holiday '
New Year's Day

Martin Luther King Day

Good Friday

Memorial Day

Independence Day

Labor Day

. Thanksgiving Day

Friday after Thanksgiving

Christmas Eve - last normal workday before Christmas Day Holiday

Christmas

Other exceptions include days when a significant number of library buildings are unable to accept delivery, defined

as the City of Milwaukee and 9 or more additional municipalities. This could be caused by such reasons as

2019 Delivery Contract
Attachment G (10/15/18)
Page14 of 16



October 2018 Page 67 MCFLS Board

inclement weather or furlough days. If this circwmstance oceurs, sorting and delivery by CONTRACTOR will not
take place and CONTRACTOR will receive no compensation for that day.

Delivery Routes and Sorting: There will be three (3) routes, a North Route, a Central Route, and a South Route The
initial pickup point for each route is the dock/sorting room area of the Central Library of the Milwaukee Public
Library, 833 West Wells S5t. Milwaukee WI 53233. Each route will be serviced once daily. Each route will be serviced
by a 15-foot box truck with Gross Vehicle Weight Limit of 14,400 pounds.

Deliveries are Monday through Friday, excepting Holidays. Deliveries should not leave the dock/sorting room

before 7:00 a.m. Routes are normally completed by 12:30 p.m. with drivers/sorters returning to the dock/sorting

room area of the Milwaukee Public Library. All materials picked up at the libraries are unloaded at the

dock/sorting room area. The drivers/sorters then sort and organize this material for the next day of service and .
store the items overnight. Work is normally completed by 6:00 p.m.

The drivers/sorters shall load and unload all such library materials at the locations within each library designated
by the System. The delivery location at the Central Library is the System Sorting Room. Changes in the delivery
schedule will be negotiated by both parties to this contract.

In the event of conveyance breakdown, the CONTRACTOR shall remain responsible for deliveries according to the
established schedule. Consistent failure to meet contract delivery schedules may result in monetary penalties
and/or termination of confract.

The CONTRACTOR shall protect said library materials from damage from the weather and/or loss by theft or |
otherwise. Should such damage and/or Ioss occur, the CONTRACTOR assumes full responsibility for these 1
damages. ‘

The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the 5YSTEM and SYSTEM Member Libraries from any and
all claims for damage and personal injury, including death to an employee of the CONTRACTOR or other persons,
or injury to property that may arise, in any manner from carrying out this contract whether by the CONTRACTOR
or by any Subcontractor, or by anyone directly or indirecily employed by either the CONTRACTOR or his/her
subcontractor or his/ her employee. ;

The SYSTEM shall not be liable to any act or acts of the CONTRACTOR, nor shall the CONTRACTOR bind, or
attempt to bind the SYSTEM in any manner, and nothing herein contained shall be construed as creating the
relationship of employer and employee between the parties, but the CONTRACTOR shall always be deemed as an
Independent Contractor,

The CONTRACTOR is limited to a vehicle height in the Central Library garage of 11'6" feet or Jess.
CONTRACTOR must insure that when said vehicle is loaded, if is capable of entering and leaving the garage. The
CONTRACTOR'S use of the loading dock is on a first come, first served basis.

The CONTRACTOR shall name the SYSTEM and SYSTEM Member Libraries as additional insured with respect
to liability coverage and will give 30 days notice in advance of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in
any coverage. The CONTRACTOR shall convey to the SYSTEM a certificate of insurance evidencing such
coverage.

2019 Delivery Contrget
Attachment G (1 0/15/18)
Page15 of 16



October 2018 Page 68

ATTACHMENT B
DELIVERY LOCATIONS FOR THE MILWAUKEE COUNTY FEDERATED
LIBRARY SYSTEM (MCFLS) 2019 CONSOLIDATED SORTING AND DELIVERY
SERVICES CONTRACT

Milwaukee Public Library Central Library:
Central Library (MPL) - 833 W. Wells 5t.., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3000)

North Route:

East Library (MPL} - 2320 N. Murray Ave., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3058)

Shorewood Public Library - 3920 N. Murray Ave., Shorewood WI (414-847-2670)
Whitefish Bay Public Library - 5420 N, Marlborough Dr., Whitefish Bay W1 (414-964-4380)
North Shore Library - 6800 N. Port Washington Rd., Glendale WI (414-351-3461)

Brown Deer Public Library - 5600 W. Bradley Rd., Brown Deer W1 (414-357-0106)

Mill Road Library (MPL) - 6431 N, 76t 5t., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3088)

Capitol Library (MPL) - 3969 N. 74t 5¢t,, Milwaukee WI (414-286-3006)

Villard Square Library (MPL) - 5190 N. 35t Street., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3079)
Atkinson Library (MPL) - 1960 W. Atkinson Ave., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3068)

South Route:

Tippecance Library (MPL) - 3912 5. Howell Ave., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3085)
Saint Francis Public Library - 4230 S, Nichelsen Ave., Saint Frarcis WI (414-481-7323)
Cudahy Family Library — 3500 Library Dr., Cudahy W1 (414-769-2244)

South Milwaukee Public Library — 1907 10% Ave.,, (414-768-8197)

Oak Creek Public Library - 8040 South 6% Street., Oak Creek W1 (414-764-4400)
Franklin Public Library - 9151 W. Loomis Rd., Franklin W1 (414-425-8214)

Hales Corners Public Library ~ 5885 5. 116% 5t., Hales Corners WT (414-529-6150)
Greendale Public Library - 5647 Broad 5t., Greendale WI (414-423-2136)

Greenfield Public Library - 5310 W, Layton Ave., Greenfield WI (414-321-9595)

Central Route:

Mitchel Street Library (MPL) - 906 W, Historic Mitchel Street., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3083)
Bay View Library (MPL) - 2566 5. Kinnickinnic Ave., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3019)

Zablocki Library (MPL}) - 3501 W. Cklahema Ave., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3055)

West Allis Public Library - 7421 W. National Ave., West Allis WI (414-302-8500)

Wauwatosa Public Library - 7635 W, North Ave,, Wauwatosa WI (414-471-8484)
Washington Park Library (MPL) - 2121 N. Sherman Blvd., Milwaukee WI (414-286-3066)
Center Street Library (MPL) - 2727 W, Fond du Lac Ave,, Milwaukee WI (414-286-3090)
Martin Luther King Library (MPL) - 310 W. Locust 5t., Milwaukee WI {414-286-3098)

Note: It is possible that during the term of the contract a municipality (ies) could move locations
of library buildings by closing existing buildings and/or opening new library buildings. Routes
may be adjusted (amended) as circumstances dictate through mutual agreement between
SYSTEM and CONTRACTOR, but monetary terms of the contract will remain the same.

2019 Delivery Contract

MCFLS Board

Attachment G (10/15/18)

Page 16 of 16



October 2018 Page 69 MCFLS Boar{j

MCFLS Strategic Planning 2018/19 |
Process Strategy Characteristics

Develop a comprehensive work plan. .
a. These would include action steps for the entire process and a plan for evaluation.

Data Collection

a. Create two surveys to send to member libraries, system board trustees and system staff:

i. Develop and administer a survey for member libraries to gather information
about the current needs and challenges of member libraries in providing
services to patrons.

ii. Develop and administer a two-part survey for member libraries, MCFLS staff and
the MCFLS Board of Trustees. Part one will use the summary of the last
strategic plan to develop questions regarding the success of the plan. The
second part will use the information gathered from libraries regarding their
current needs for and challenges to providing services to patrons.

Strategic Plan Development

a. Developmental Meeting {Full Day). Facilitate meeting to help participants identify
strategic issues using data collected in step B. Develop goals, objectives and strategies
to address those issues. Consider PLSR recommendations in light of these issues and

identify potential areas of collaboration.

b. Meet with MCFLS staff to go over proposed plan and develop a strategy for ongoing
assessment.

Writing the Strategic Plan Document
a. Develop draft of written strategic plan.
b. Revise strategic plan based on feedback from stakeholders.

c. Present strategic plan to MCFLS Trustees by end of April 2019,

2018/19 Strategic Planning
Attachment H (10/15/18)
Pagel of 5



October 2018 F’age 70 MCFLS Board

Milwaukee County Federated Library System (MCFLS)
Strategic Plan Development, Consulting and Facilitation Services
Memorandum of Understanding
September 26, 2018

[ntroduction

The purpose of this proposal is to define the parameters and costs of the Strategic Plan Development,
Consulting and Facilitation Services WiLs will provide to the Milwaukee County Federated Library System
(MCFLS).

Contacts
Communication regarding this proposal should be directed to:

WILS MCFLS

Bruce Smith Steve Heser

1360 Regent Street, #121 709 North 8th Street
Madison, WI 53715-1255 Milwaukee, W153233
608-620-5421 414-286-8149
bsmith@wils.org steve.heser@mcfls.org

Project process and deliverables

information and data gathering and assessment

1. WiLS will work with MCFLS staff to develop a summary of the end status of previous plan activities, as
reported during the implementation process, to do a final assessment on the completion of activities,
progress made, or activities that were not undertaken. Action steps include:

a. MCFLS system staff will use progress summaries from the implementation process of the last
strategic plan to develop an overall summary of the results of the last planning process.

b. WILS has a phone meeting with MCFLS system staff to review the progress summaries to assess
results of the last plan.

c.  WIiLS will use this information for survey development.

2. WILS will develop and administer two surveys.

a. WILS will develop and administer a survey for member libraries to gather information about the
current needs and challenges of member fibraries in providing services to patrons. Action steps ‘
include: !

. WILS will develop the survey to gather information to identify resources and services
libraries want to provide to their patrons that they aren't providing now; trends and
innovations member libraries want to further explore or pursue; risks and challenges

2018/19 Strategic Planning
Attachment H (10/15/18)
Page 2 of 5



October 2018 Page 71 MCFLS Board

that libraries are facing; and new roles and opportunities libraries have or could have in
their communities.

ii. WILS administers the survey to member library directors. This will be an online survey
with one response per library. WiLS will provide a printable version of the survey for
member library directors to use to gather input from their staff, as they determine Is
needed.

iil. WILS compiles the information and shares with participants (MCFLS Board of Trustee
members, MCFLS staff, and member library directors) in advance of the first strategic
plan development half-day meeting to identify strategic issues.

b. WIiLS will develop and administer a two-part survey for member libraries, MCFLS staff and the
MCFLS Board of Trustees. Part one will use the summary of the last strategic plan to develop
questions regarding the success of the plan. The second part will use the information gathered
from libraries regarding their current needs for and challenges to providing services to patrons.
The second part will focus on questions to identify how and to what extent the system should
be addressing these service needs and what efficiencies the system can provide through scale
and coordination. Action steps include: '

I, WILS will develop and administer the survey to member library directors, MCFLS staff
and the MCFLS Board of Trustees. This will be an online survey with one response per
library, MCFLS staff member and MCFLS board member. WiLS will provide a printable
version of the survey for member library directors to use to gather input from their
staff, as they determine is needed.

ii. WILS compiles the information and shares with participants in advance of the first
strategic plan development half-day meeting to identify strategic issues.

Strategic plan development

3. WILS wili facilitate a full-day meeting of the MCFLS Board, system staff, and member library directors.
The meeting will first focus on identifying strategic issues based on the data and information gathered.
The second focus of the meeting will be the development of a goals, objectives and strategies
framework to address the strategic issues identified at the first meeting. Also, as part of this meeting,
recommendations from the Public Library System Redesign (PLSR) will be considered to identify issues
and potential areas of collaboration that need to be addressed in the plan framework. Action steps
include:

a.  WIiLS will work with the system director to determine logistical needs for the meeting, including
communicating with participants in advance to share information for the meeting.

b. WIiLS will develop the agenda and process activities for the meeting.

WILS will provide two staff to facilitate and document the meeting.

d.  WILS will document the strategic issues that are identified during the meeting and the goals,
objectives and strategies framework that are developed during the meeting to be used to create
the final strategic plan document. _

4. WiLS will meet with MCFLS staff for 2-3 hours to develop strategies to assess and evaluate strategic pian
implementation. Action steps include:

a.  WILS will work with the system director to determine logistical needs for the meeting, including
communicating with staff in advance to share meeting information.

b. WiLS will develop an agenda and process activities for the meeting.

WiLS will document the implementation, assessment and plan evaluation strategies identifled
during the meeting,

2018/19 Strategic Planning
Attackment H (10/15/18)
Page 3 of 5



October 2018  Page 72 MCFLS Board

5. WILS will coordinate the writing of the strategic plan document, collaborating with system staff. Action
steps include:

a. WilS will use relevant data and information gathered during the process; the goals, objectives
and strategies framework; and the implementation strategies identified with MCFLS to write the
first draft of the strategic plan document.

b. WILS will coordinate a schedule with the system to complete the draft of the final plan
document. This will include writing input from the library system to edit the first draft. The
system will coordinate feedback from the MCFLS Board, system staff, and member library
directors as part of their work providing edits to the first draft.

c.  WILS has allocated 16 hours for writing the strategic plan document. If additional writing time is
requested, WiLS will work with the system to develop a mutually agreed upon additional
number of hours requested of WILS by the system,

Proposed timeline

1. Early November: develop summary of |ast plan results and develop and administer first survey.
Late November to Early December: develop and administer second survey.

Mid-January: hold full-day plan development meeting.

Early February: meet with MCFLS staff to develop implementation and assessment strategies.
Mid-February through March: write and complete the strategic plan.

April: submit strategic plan for board approval.

o om s W

Costs and agreement terms

Activity Time Cost
Development of a summary of last strategic | 8 hours 5600
plan
Surveys — development, administration and 24 hours $1,800
compilation of results
Plan development meeting (2 people - 24 hours 51,800
includes preparation, facilitation and travel :
time) i
Implementation and assessment 16 hours 51,200 !
development meeting (2 people - includes '
preparation, facilitation and travel time) i
Plan writing 16 hours 51,200
Mileage and misc. project expenses N/A 5200 j
TOTAL $6,800 |
Payment Schedule
Due upon start of project: $2,000.00 .
Due upon delivery of the final plan document: $4,800.00 !

Duration of agreement/cancellation
e WilS and MCFLS will work together to establish a timeline of the different activities to complete each
step of the proposal, If either WILS or MCFLS need to alter the previously agreed upon timeline, such
alterations should be made prior to the deadline date of the activity that will need to be rescheduled. If !

2018/19 Strategic Planning :
Attachment H (10/15/18) |
Page 4 of 5



October 2018 Page 73 MCFLS Board

deadlines are repeatedly not met by MCFLS without communicating with WILS, WiLS reserves the right
to change the project timeline with MCFLS approval of the new timeline. If the change in timeline will
result in overlap with other projects to the extent that WiLS will not be able to complete the work with
existing staff resources, WILS reserves the right to delay the project to a mutually agreed upon time or
to cancel the project,

» During the course of the agreement the contracting parties have the right to stop work at any time and
WiLS will be paid for any work and expenses incurred through the time of cancellation.

Other Terms

e As part of the above costs, WILS calculates approximately 2 hours per month of communication time
with the system to coordinate next steps, answer guestions and discuss any potential changes to the
project. This is beyond the meetings scheduled in the different phases of the project as documented in
each phase of the proposal. Should communication be required by the system beyond this amount of
time each month, WILS will discuss with the system either creating a communication plan to maintain
communications within this time range or providing a cost estimate to provide more communication
time for the project.

s Astrategic planning process is often an iterative process. There may be points during the planning
project were information is discovered that leads to the potentially adding or removing a step or two to
the planning process. When this occurs, if requested, WiLS will provide a cost estimate to perform the
additional work.

Agreed to and accepted by:

WiLsS MCFLS

Signature Signature
Bruce Smith

Name Name
Community Liaison

Title Title

September 26, 2018
Date Date

2018/19 Strategic Planning
Attachment H (10/15/18)
Page 5 of 5



MILWAUKEE W COUNTY

FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM

October 9th, 2018

September/October 2018 Director’s Report

Summary of activities

B o

709 Noth Bighth Shreel
Milwoukes, W 53233
mr A14-986-814%

wo 414-286-3209

Attended a town hall forum regarding the future of the Brown Deer library on September
18%, Brown Deer is planning on purchasing an existing structure and move library

operations in around two years time.

Participated in a statewide WISCNET training opportunity on design thinking September

19%,

Met with MPL staff and UWM professor Dr. Latham to prepare and plan for our WLA

presentation on fines. The session will be held October 24,

Attended CollectionHQ training and spoke with our sales rep to see what we can do to ensure

member libraries use the product.

Participated in state-wide discussions to see how systems could collaborate on back-up

space, computer purchases and firewall hardware.
Completed work on the 2019 MCFLS budget and 2019 System Plan.

Hosted Dr. Latham and a visiting scholar from China to discuss how MCFLS provides

technology services to member libraries,

Spoke with MPL staff to determine how best to handle their risk management needs and

ensure materials are not discarded prematurely.

Attended the Milwaukee County budget commitiee meeting on October 9™ to lobby for
increased funding for MCFLS operations, emphasizing our need to replace server hardware

in 2019.

Upcoming Activities

Begin the process of strategic planning with consultants.
Attend PLSR Steering committee meeting October 16%

Investigate creation of an information security policy as a collaborative effort with Judy

Pinger from MPL.

Work with MCFLS staff to prepare Wikl hotspots for use by member libraries as soon as

possible.

Participate in SRLAAW and other sessions as part of the WLA conference held in La Crosse

between October 23™ and October 26%.
Attend compliance meeting with DPI staff on November 14,

ey the oubiin Toroses in Milveosdose County SERVE YOU BETTER

Director’s Report
Attachment I (10/15/18)
Page1 of1




